

To be read in conjunction with the 2021 AFL Victoria Country Football Handbook and Netball Victoria Rules.

The information contained in this document may be subject to change without notice.

To the knowledge of the CDFNL all information was accurate as at time of printing.

# **Table of Contents**

Calendar of Events	2
CDFNL Contacts	4
Related Contacts	5
Club Contacts	6
Football By Laws	18
Football Competition Rules	41
Netball Competition Rules	57
CDFNL 2021 Fixture	66

# 2021 EVENTS CALENDAR

Month/Day	Date	Time	Calendar Event	Venue
January				
Monday	4		AFL Barwon Office Opens	
Tuesday	26		Australia Day Public Holiday - Office Closed	
February				
Monday	1		Football Clearances & Registrations Open	
Wednesday	3		CDFNL Board Meeting	
Mon - Thur	15-18		Educational Week	
March				
Monday	8		Labour Day - Office Closed	
Wednesday	10		CDFNL Board Meeting	
Mon - Thur	15-18		Operational Week	
Wednesday	17	6.30pm	CDFNL Captain's Photos	
Wednesday	17	7.00pm	CDFNL Season Launch	
Tuesday	23	7.00pm	CDFNL Delegates Forum	
Saturday	27		CDFNL Round 1 - Alvie vs Irrewarra-Beeac	Central Reserve
April				
Friday	2		Good Friday - Office Closed	
Saturday	3		CDFNL Round 1 - Lorne vs Alvie	Stribling Reserve
Saturday	10		CDFNL Round 1	
Saturday	17		CDFNL Round 2	
Saturday	24		CDFNL Round 3	
Sunday	25		ANZAC Day	
May				
Saturday	1		CDFNL Round 4	
Saturday	8		CDFNL Round 5	
Saturday	15		CDFNL Round 6	
Saturday	22		CDFNL Round 7	
Saturday	29		CDFNL Round 8	
June				
Saturday	5		CDFNL Round 9 (Bye: Alvie & Irrewarra-Beeac)	

# 2021 EVENTS CALENDAR

Month/Day	Date	Time	Calendar Event	Venue
Wednesday	9		CDFNL Board Meeting	
Saturday	12		CDFNL Round 10	
Saturday	19		CDFNL Round 11	
Saturday	26		CDFNL Round 12	
			Love the Game Round	
July				
Sat & Sun	3 & 4		All Football & Netball Bye	
Saturday	10		CDFNL Round 13	
Saturday	17		CDFNL Round 14 (Towards Zero Round )	
Saturday	24		CDFNL Round 15	
Saturday	31		CDFNL Round 16	
August				
Wednesday	4		CDFNL Board Meeting	
Saturday	7		CDFNL Round 17	
Saturday	14		CDFNL Round 18	
Sat & Sun	21 & 22		CDFNL Qualifying & Elimination Finals	Central Reserve
Sat & Sun	28 & 29		CDFNL Semi Finals	Central Reserve
Monday	30		CDFNL Junior Vote Counts	Colac RSL
September				
Wednesday	1		CDFNL Senior Vote Counts	Colac RSL
Saturday	4		CDFNL Preliminary Finals	Central Reserve
Saturday	11		CDFNL Grand Finals	Central Reserve
October				
Wednesday	20		CDFNL Board Meeting	
November				
Sunday	1		2022 Football Clearances & Registrations Open	
Wednesday	17	6.30pm	CDFNL Annual General Meeting	Central Reserve
Wednesday	24	7.00pm	AFL Barwon Annual General Meeting	Buckley's

2 2021 Handbook

# CONTACTS

### **CDFNL CONTACTS**

#### CDFNL BOARD

#### Chairman

Peter Hickey Mob: 0448 917 951 Email: peterhickey14@gmail.com

#### **Board Members**

Brvan Hunt Mob: 0429 996 456 Email: brveve29@bigpond.com Darvl Wilkinson Mob: 0418 313 576 Email: dtwilko1@bigpond.com Peter Mulheron Mob: 0438 351 294 Email: pmulheron1@hotmail.com Jim Allan Mob. 0428 316 999 Email: iim@gafm.com.au Lorraine Rodger Mob: 0439 557 966 Email: iohnandrain@hotmail.com Sue Melican Ph: 5236 2223 Email: smelican@bigpond.net.au Sue Kerr Mobile: 0411 452 629 Email: susankerr49@gmail.com Eva Callahan (Netball Coaches Coordinator) Mobile: 0488 755 834

# Email: ecallahan66@yahoo.com

Highton Reserve Roslyn Road, Highton 3216 Ph: (03)5241 6774 Website: www.aflbarwon.com.au Facebook: AFL Barwon Instagram: @aflbarwon Twitter: @aflbarwon

Postal Address PO Box 6007 Highton Vic 3216

# <u>Staff</u>

Regional General Manager TBC

Mobile: Email:

Commercial Partnerships Manager Georgia Hillman Mobile: 0448 059 222

Email: georgia@aflbarwon.com.au

#### Head of Operations

Michael Limb Mobile: 0438 416 774 Email: michael@aflbarwon.com.au

#### Football Manager

Sean Atkinson Mobile: 0438 391 832 Email: sean@aflbarwon.com.au

#### **Football Coordinator**

Nathan Ervin Mobile: 0432 032 569 Email: nathan@aflbarwon.com.au

#### **Football Director of Umpiring**

Jock Hillgrove Mobile: 0402 201 316 Email: jock@aflbarwon.com.au

#### Netball & Events Manager

Sarah Allen Mobile: 0488 715 775 Email: sarah@aflbarwon.com.au

# CONTACTS

#### Netball Coordinator

Emily Wolfenden-Carey Mobile : 0407 450 077 Email: emily@aflbarwon.com.au

Admin/Accounts Manager Deb Thewlis Email: accounts@aflbarwon.com.au

#### AFL BARWON COMMISSIONERS

Chairman Craig Keating

#### Commissioners

Bob Hallett David Milsome Ian McTaggart Michelle Gerdtz Nicola Wojcik Pip Jankowski Richard Underwood

#### **RELATED CONTACTS**

CDFUA Ph: 52311867 colacumpires@bigpond.com P.O. Box 47 Colac 3250

#### **CDFUA President**

Craig Kerr Mobile: 0408 363 597 craig@swit.com.au

**Colac Herald** 5231 5322 5231 1943

**3CS** 5231 5388

#### AFL VICTORIA

Club Development & Operations Manager Darryl Collings Mobile: 0430 313 975 Email: darryl.collings@afl.com.au

AFL Victoria SportsTG Assistance Annick Van Diesen Email: annick.vandiesen@afl.com.au

#### **GEELONG & DISTRICT FOOTBALL LEAGUE**

President Neville Whitley Mobile: 0418 504 175 Email: president@adfnl.com.au

Football Manager Alan Moore Mobile: 0419 536 430 Email: alangdflwireless@bigpond.com.au

Netball Manager Lee Doherty Mobile: 0437 866 511 Email: geelongdflnetball@gmail.com

#### **Geelong Falcons**

Regional Talent Operations Lead Tom Lonergan Mobile: 0428 169 830 Email: tom.lonergan@afl.com.au

Head Coach

Paul Corrigan Mobile: 0437 432 524 Email: paul.corrigan@afl.com.au

#### NETBALL VICTORIA

Netball Participation Coordinator Maddie Okely Mobile: 0488 634 345 Email: maddie.okely@netballvic.com.au

# ALVIE

President

Luke McLennan

lukeafnc@gmail.com

chelsea mav4@hotmail.com

Football Manager

stuart.ball@anz.com

lukeafnc@gmail.com

joe.dare91@gmail.com

**Reserves Coach** 

lukeafnc@gmail.com

Luke McLennan

0408 316 219

Media Contact

Luke McLennan

Senior Coach

0409 314 166

. Ine Dare

0408 316 219

0408 316 219

Secretary

Chelsea Hillman

0419 879 647

Stuart Ball

0433 632 255

P.O. Box 19 Cororooke 3254 www.alviefnc.vcfl.com.au

> ALVIE SWANS AFIC Inc Est 1922

# 2021 FIXTURE

1	27/3/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
1	3/4/21	Lorne	Away
2	17/4/21	Apollo Bay	Home
3	24/4/21	Simpson	Away
4	1/5/21	Otway Districts	Home
5	8/5/21	Birregurra	Away
6	15/5/21	South Colac	Away
7	22/5/21	Western Eagles	Home
8	29/5/21	Colac Imperials	Away
10	12/6/21	Lorne	Home
11	19/6/21	Apollo Bay	Away
12	26/6/21	Simpson	Home
13	10/7/21	Otway Districts	Away
14	17/7/21	Birregurra	Home
15	24/7/21	South Colac	Home
16	31/7/21	Western Eagles	Away
17	7/8/21	Colac Imperials	Home
18	14/8/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away

f Alvie Football Netball Club Inc

Alvie Football Netball Club

# FOOTBALL CONTACTS NETBALL CONTACTS

President Gracesyn Perrett 0400 268 122

> gracesynperrett@gmail.com A Grade Coach Morgan Eldridge 0447 242 914

#### Umpire Coordinator Sarah Mulgrew 0497 595 577 sarahmulgrew35@hotmail.com

# www.apollobayfnc.com.au

PO Box 237. Vic 3233

# 2021 FIXTURE

APOLLO BAY

1	10/4/21	Otway Districts	Home
2	17/4/21	Alvie	Away
3	24/4/21	South Colac	Home
4	1/5/21	Western Eagles	Home
5	8/5/21	Colac Imperials	Away
6	15/5/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
7	22/5/21	Lorne	Away
8	29/5/21	Birregurra	Home
9	5/6/21	Simpson	Home
10	12/6/21	Otway Districts	Away
11	19/6/21	Alvie	Home
12	26/6/21	South Colac	Away
13	10/7/21	Western Eagles	Away
14	17/7/21	Colac Imperials	Home
15	24/7/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
16	31/7/21	Lorne	Home
17	7/8/21	Birregurra	Away
18	14/8/21	Simpson	Away



## FOOTBALL CONTACTS NETBALL CONTACTS

President-Executive Nethall operations Jodie Bertrand 0401 402 059 jodie.bertrand@vahoo.com

Secretary Tina Clissold 0438 377 457

gav\_tina@bigpond.com

Rhiannon White 0457 754 811 rhi white@hotmail.com

**Umpire Coordinator** 

Jodie Bertrand 0401 402 059 jodie.bertrand@yahoo.com

sallycannon52@gmail.com Junior Football Coordinator

Gavin Clissold 0438 376 882 gav\_tina@bigpond.com

Senior Coach

Dion Lawson 0423 513 584 Lawson\_205@hotmail.com

**Reserves Coach** 

Harley Soall 0422 809 890 harleysoall@gmail.com

Under 18 Coach

? Not appointed yet

# \_\_\_\_\_

2021 Handbook

6



# APOLLO BAY

President

Sally Cannon

0439 806 271

Secretary

Tina Clissold

0438 377 457

John Luaa

0434 543 092

Sally Cannon

0439 806 271

Mick Cannon

0439 116 812

Media Contact

**Tribunal Contact** 

sallvcannon52@gmail.com

gav tina@bigpond.com

Football Manager

di.john5650@gmail.com

sallycannon52@gmail.com

# BIRREGURRA

Birregurra Football and Netball Club f

# PO Box 92 Birreguura 3242 Birreourrasaints.com.au



BIRREGURRA FOOTBALL NETBALL CLUB

# 2021 FIXTURE

1	10/4/21	Simpson	Hom
	., ,		
2	17/4/21	Colac Imperials	Away
3	24/4/21	Otway Districts	Hom
4	1/5/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
5	8/5/21	Alvie	Home
6	15/5/21	Lorne	Away
7	22/5/21	South Colac	Home
8	29/5/21	Apollo Bay	Away
9	5/6/21	Western Eagles	Home
10	12/6/21	Simpson	Away
11	19/6/21	Colac Imperials	Hom
12	26/6/21	Otway Districts	Away
13	10/7/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Hom
14	17/7/21	Alvie	Away
15	24/7/21	Lorne	Hom
16	31/7/21	South Colac	Away
17	7/8/21	Apollo Bay	Hom
18	14/8/21	Western Eagles	Away

#### FOOTBALL CONTACTS President

Mick Paddick ph 0488996528 . paddick.mick@gmail.com

Secretary Paula Wheadon 041 7340 390 paula@wheadonstg.com.au

Football Manager TBC

Media Contact Mick Paddick ph 0488996528 paddick.mick@gmail.com

**Tribunal Contact** Mick Paddick ph 0488996528 paddick.mick@gmail.com

**Junior Football Coordinator** Gavin Brien ph 0407041960 gsbrien@outlook.com

#### Senior Coach James Rowan/Glen Darroch

ph 0477756351 glen.darroch@akd.com.au

#### **Reserves Coach**

Peter hanlon ph 0411136601 pghanlon@vahoo.com.au

Under 19 Coach

# NA

# NETBALL CONTACTS

President Angela Hall ph 0422379555 angela.hall2@bigpond.com.au

Secretary Jody Tyrer/Kylie Permezel ph 0409257480 . sitvrer@bigpon.net.au

A Grade Coach Saskia Rowan ph 0458974507 saskiadouglasdekker@gmail.com

Junior Coordinator TRC

#### Umpire Coordinator

Serma Spowart ph 0447310922 seremaimb@gmail.com.au



President

Peter Lucas

Secretary

John Simpson

0409 222 642

Football Manager

Carlwinchcomb@live.com.au

Carl Winchcomb

Media Contact

0409 510 943

Peter Lucas 0431 352 701

0431 352 701

peterlucasp@bigpond.com

# PO Box 255 Colac Vic 3250 www.colacimperials.com.au



# **2021 FIXTURE**

1	10/4/21	Western Eagles	Away
2	17/4/21	Birregurra	Home
3	24/4/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
4	1/5/21	Lorne	Away
5	8/5/21	Apollo Bay	Home
6	15/5/21	Simpson	Away
7	22/5/21	Otway Districts	Away
8	29/5/21	Alvie	Home
9	5/6/21	South Colac	Away
10	12/6/21	Western Eagles	Home
11	19/6/21	Birregurra	Away
12	26/6/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
13	10/7/21	Lorne	Home
14	17/7/21	Apollo Bay	Away
15	24/7/21	Simpson	Home
16	31/7/21	Otway Districts	Home
17	7/8/21	Alvie	Away
18	14/8/21	South Colac	Home

#### **f** Colac Imperials FNC

C colacimperialsfnc

#### FOOTBALL CONTACTS NETBALL CONTACTS

President - Nethall Coordinator Chelsea McLeod 0437 682 346 chelseamcleod@bigpond.com

A Grade Coach Siobhan Casev secretary@colacimperials.com.au 0427 094 954

> siobhan.casey@deakin.edu.au Junior Coordinator

Chelsea McLeod 0437 682 346 chelseamcleod@biopond.com

**Umpire Coordinator** 

Chelsea McLeod 0437 682 346 chelseamcleod@bigpond.com

peterlucasp@bigpond.com Media Contact Peter Lucas 0431 352 701 peterlucasp@bigpond.com

Senior Coach

Paul Liistro 0438 552 995 pjliistro@gmail.com

**Reserves Coach** 

Keegan Byrne / Anthony Foster 0438 033581 wazzup world 224@hotmail.com

Under 18 Coach

Adam Harris 0438 877 966 baverharris@bigpond.com

#### 2021 Handbook 8

# IRREWARRA-BEEAC

#### irrewarrabeeacfnc

# PO Box 125. Colac VIC 3250 www.irrewarrabeeacfnc@vcfl.com.au



# 2021 FIXTURE

1	27/3/21	Alvie	Away
1	10/4/21	South Colac	Away
2	17/4/21	Western Eagles	Home
3	24/4/21	Colac Imperials	Away
4	1/5/21	Birregurra	Home
5	8/5/21	Lorne	Away
6	15/5/21	Apollo Bay	Away
7	22/5/21	Simpson	Home
8	29/5/21	Otway Districts	Away
10	12/6/21	South Colac	Home
11	19/6/21	Western Eagles	Away
12	26/6/21	Colac Imperials	Home
13	10/7/21	Birregurra	Away
14	17/7/21	Lorne	Home
15	24/7/21	Apollo Bay	Home
16	31/7/21	Simpson	Away
17	7/8/21	Otway Districts	Home
18	14/8/21	Alvie	Home

# FOOTBALL CONTACTS

President STUART NELSON 0418145811 stuart@colactocoast.com.au

Secretary CHRIS DELL 0438312474 cde81483@bigpond.net.au

#### Football Manager

CHRIS DELL 0438312474 cde81483@bigpond.net.au

Media Contact BRIAN RODGER 0418523512

#### **Tribunal Contact**

CHRIS DELL 0438312474 cde81483@bigpond.net.au

STUART NELSON 0418145811 stuart@colactocoast.com.au

Junior Football Coordinator CHRIS DELL 0438312474

cde81483@bigpond.net.au Senior Coach

CAMERON PARKER 0437860096 scruff\_24\_15@hotmail.com

#### **Reserves Coach**

LUKE VICKERS 0409518667 luke.vickers@hotmail.com

#### Under 18 Coach TONY WAI KER

0429308255 tonywalker9@bigpond.com

Under 18 Coach ROBERT FLBOROUGH 0409707199 RCELBOROUGH@HOTMAIL.COM

# NETBALL CONTACTS

President Johannah Menzies 0433 081 445 johannah\_dooley@hotmail.com

#### Secretary - ADMIN

Rachael Parsons 0447 867 631 rachel\_maree@live.com.au

#### Secretary - OPERATIONS

Kate Watts 0419 305 411 katewatts29@hotmail.com

A Grade Coach Leah Ousev 0408 818 492 leah.ousev@bigpond.com

Junior Coordinator Joy Parsons

0418 501 568 kiparsons@bigpond.com

# Umpire Coordinator

Kylie Morrissy 0419 599 684



PO Box 140 Lorne 3232

www.lornefnc.com.au

# 2021 FIXTURE

1	3/4/21	Alvie	Home
2	17/4/21	South Colac	Home
3	24/4/21	Western Eagles	Home
4	1/5/21	Colac Imperials	Home
5	8/5/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
6	15/5/21	Birregurra	Home
7	22/5/21	Apollo Bay	Home
8	29/5/21	Simpson	Home
9	5/6/21	Otway Districts	Home
10	12/6/21	Alvie	Away
11	19/6/21	South Colac	Away
12	26/6/21	Western Eagles	Away
13	10/7/21	Colac Imperials	Away
14	17/7/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
15	24/7/21	Birregurra	Away
16	31/7/21	Apollo Bay	Away
17	7/8/21	Simpson	Away
18	14/8/21	Otway Districts	Away

**f** Lorne Dolphins

# FOOTBALL CONTACTS

#### President

Lee Hollmer

0427 134 529 lee@hollmer-plumbing.com.au carlviavne 6@hotmail.com

NETBALL CONTACTS

President

Zoe Donne

J Carroll

Carly Enticott

A Grade Coach

Umpire Coordinator

# 0407 891 337 Secretary

LORNE

Inarid Wilson 0418 568 428 ingrid.w@live.com.au

Football Manager

Miah Atwell 0439 892 233 miahatwell@gmail.com

#### Media Contact

Lee Hollmer 0407 891 337 lee@hollmer-plumbing.com.au

**Tribunal Contact** Michael Turner

#### Junior Football Coordinator

Selenna Walding 0450 798 405 selenaselena1973@outlook.com

Senior Coach .I Hollmer

#### **Reserves Coach**

Allam Alford 0435 131 001

#### Under 19 Coach

Simon Umbers



# **OTWAY DISTRICTS**

PO Box 41. Colac VIC 3250 www.otwaydistrictfnc.vcfl.com.au



# **2021 FIXTURE**

1	10/4/21	Apollo Bay	Away
2	17/4/21	Simpson	Home
3	24/4/21	Birregurra	Away
4	1/5/21	Alvie	Away
5	8/5/21	South Colac	Home
6	15/5/21	Western Eagles	Away
7	22/5/21	Colac Imperials	Home
8	29/5/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
9	5/6/21	Lorne	Away
10	12/6/21	Apollo Bay	Home
11	19/6/21	Simpson	Away
12	26/6/21	Birregurra	Home
13	10/7/21	Alvie	Home
14	17/7/21	South Colac	Away
15	24/7/21	Western Eagles	Home
16	31/7/21	Colac Imperials	Away
17	7/8/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
18	14/8/21	Lorne	Home

2021 Handbook

#### f https://www.facebook.com/ODFNC2016

otwaydemonsfnc

#### FOOTBALL CONTACTS NETBALL CONTACTS

President Ross Panther 0408084513 rosspanther19@hotmail.com

Secretary Linda Perkins

Football Manager Ross Panther 0408084513 rosspanther19@hotmail.com

#### Media Contact

Ross Panther 0408084513 rosspanther19@hotmail.com

**Tribunal Contact** Ross Panther 0408084513 rosspanther19@hotmail.com

#### Junior Football Coordinator

Lenny Perkins 0427797849 lenny.perkins@hotmail.com

Senior Coach Stewart Sutherland 0400073991

Senior Coach Sean Maxwell

0403477098 **Reserves Coach** 

Ken Hav 0427322188

Under 18 Coach Matthew Zurbo 0459783493

# President

Gina Larson 0427322496 georginalarson.gl@gmail.com

Secretary Linda Perkins linda.m.perkins80@gmail.com

A Grade Coach Candi Panther 0403896021 candirobbins4@gmail.com

Umpire Coordinator Vicki Brown 0408523545 vickibrown72@bigpond.com C/O Simpson Post Office. Simpson, Vic 2366



# 2021 FIXTURE

1	10/4/21	Birregurra	Away
2	17/4/21	Otway Districts	Away
3	24/4/21	Alvie	Home
4	1/5/21	South Colac	Away
5	8/5/21	Western Eagles	Home
6	15/5/21	Colac Imperials	Home
7	22/5/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
8	29/5/21	Lorne	Away
9	5/6/21	Apollo Bay	Away
10	12/6/21	Birregurra	Home
11	19/6/21	Otway Districts	Home
12	26/6/21	Alvie	Away
13	10/7/21	South Colac	Home
14	17/7/21	Western Eagles	Away
15	24/7/21	Colac Imperials	Away
16	31/7/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
17	7/8/21	Lorne	Home
18	14/8/21	Apollo Bay	Home

# SIMPSON

£ facebook/simpsontigers/

simpsontigers

#### FOOTBALL CONTACTS

President

Secretary

Havley Weel

0448 848 349

hweel@outlook.com

A Grade Coach

Rehecca Mitchell

0411 951 591

Casey Tesselaar 0425 264 466 casev.weel@outlook.com

NETBALL CONTACTS

#### 0427 959 249 johny2@live.com.au Secretary

President

Brad Smith

Annie Chandlev 0425 072 073 simpsontigers@gmail.com

#### Football Manager

Bree Jones 0428 334 004 simpsontigers@gmail.com

#### Media Contact Brad Smith 0427 959 249 simpsontigers@gmail.com

Umpire Coordinator Havley Weel 0448 848 349 hweel@outlook.com

rebeccarohan97@gmail.com

#### Junior Football Coordinator

Bree Jones 0428 334 004 simpsontigers@gmail.com

Senior Coach

Tom Leishman / Nick Harding" 0409 853 449 tomleishman\_4@hotmail.com

#### Under 18 Coach

Judson Jennings 0427 383 232 juddys87place@hotmail.com

# SOUTH COLAC

PO Box 75, Colac VIC 3250 www.southcolacfnc.com.au



# 2021 FIXTURE

1	10/4/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
2	17/4/21	Lorne	Away
3	24/4/21	Apollo Bay	Away
4	1/5/21	Simpson	Home
5	8/5/21	Otway Districts	Away
6	15/5/21	Alvie	Home
7	22/5/21	Birregurra	Away
8	29/5/21	Western Eagles	Away
9	5/6/21	Colac Imperials	Home
10	12/6/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
11	19/6/21	Lorne	Home
12	26/6/21	Apollo Bay	Home
13	10/7/21	Simpson	Away
14	17/7/21	Otway Districts	Home
15	24/7/21	Alvie	Away
16	31/7/21	Birregurra	Home
17	7/8/21	Western Eagles	Home
18	14/8/21	Colac Imperials	Away

2021 Handbook

14

South Colac Sports Club £

Southcolacfnc

# FOOTBALL CONTACTS

President Chris Triaa 0439611395 christrigg19@hotmail.com

Secretary Jenna Parker 0400150862 southcolacfnc@gmail.com

#### Football Manager Rvan Fennell

0419434072 rvan.fennell@fennellwest.com.au

#### Media Contact

Mick Baker 0402271255 mickbaker78@vahoo.com.au

**Tribunal Contact** Rvan Fennell 0419434072 rvan.fennell@fennellwest.com.au

Junior Football Coordinator

Adam McNamara 0429496566

#### adam.mcnamara@barwonwater.vic.gov.au Junior Football Coordinator

Ashlev Borch 0408391792 ab@abconstructions.com.au

#### Senior Coach

Nick Lynch 0419219584 lvnchv77@hotmail.com

#### **Reserves Coach**

Rvan Fennell 0419434072 ryan.fennell@fennellwest.com.au

# NETBALL CONTACTS

President Nicole Mitchell

0409315997 nicwest3250@hotmail.com

Secretary Rachael Baker 0409539037 rpaatsch@vahoo.com.au

A Grade Coach Edwina Parker 0404404878 Edwinaparker@hotmail.com

#### Umpire Coordinator Molly Lugg 0437152997 molly\_lugg@hotmail.com

Po Box 402 Colac VIC 3250 w.eagles@bigpond.com



# 2021 FIXTURE

1	10/4/21	Colac Imperials	Home
2	17/4/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Away
3	24/4/21	Lorne	Away
4	1/5/21	Apollo Bay	Away
5	8/5/21	Simpson	Away
6	15/5/21	Otway Districts	Home
7	22/5/21	Alvie	Away
8	29/5/21	South Colac	Home
9	5/6/21	Birregurra	Away
10	12/6/21	Colac Imperials	Away
11	19/6/21	Irrewarra-Beeac	Home
12	26/6/21	Lorne	Home
13	10/7/21	Apollo Bay	Home
14	17/7/21	Simpson	Home
15	24/7/21	Otway Districts	Away
16	31/7/21	Alvie	Home
17	7/8/21	South Colac	Away
18	14/8/21	Birregurra	Home

(i) westerneagles fnc

# FOOTBALL CONTACTS

President Rob Montano 0418 523702

# NETBALL CONTACTS

President Jenny Fish 0428 727900 iennvfish@hotmail.com.au

Secretary

A Grade Coach

robert 1@bigpond.net.au

Umpire Coordinator

Glenda Montano

0407 869 862

Heae Eier

#### info@colacolass.com Secretary

WESTERN EAGLES

Malanie Hardingham 0434 354190 melanie.hardingham74@gmail.com

Football Manager

Fran McMillian 0409 962355 frammcmillan363@gmail.com

Media Contact Rob Montano

0418 523702

Sam Dravton 0407 292512 Sam Dravton 0407 292512 sammi dravton@hotmail.com

15

#### info@colacolass.com **Tribunal Contact**

Rob Montano 0418 523702 info@colacglass.com

#### **Junior Football Coordinator**

Marc Montano 0418 523899 marc@westernib.com.au

#### Senior Coach

Craig Hardingham 0476 824825 bigh3179@hotmail.com

#### **Reserves Coach**

Justin Hickey 0432 407 407

#### **Reserves Coach**

Brad Morgan 0439 903 518 morgz@hotmail.com

**CLUB CONTACTS** 

# AFL BARWON HAS AN APP



	-	-				
AFL BARWON						
CALENDER	٥	P	LADDERS			
FIXTURES	≣	睅	LIVE SCORES			
SOCIAL MEDIA	<b>4</b> 4	*	SPONSORS			
TEAM LISTS	Ð	Ø	NEWS			
LIVE GAME	Ø	Ø	AFL BARWON			

# FEATURES:

Live scores Fixtures & ladders Keep up to date with all the news

Team lists

Social media

And much more

Install the AFL Barwon app on your Smartphone now!

Follow these steps:

1 Download Team App from the Apple or Google Play app

store.







Google play

- 2 Sign up to Team App. You will be sent an email to confirm your registration
- 3 Log into the App and search for AFL Barwon.
- 4 Choose supporter from the access group(s).

# CDFNL FOOTBALL BY LAWS

# Table of Contents

1.	Definitions and Interpretation	18
2	League Provisions	18
3	Club Affiliation	
4	Umpires and Club Officials	
5	Club Uniforms	23
6	Club Office Bearers	24
7	Independent Tribunal	25
8	Investigation Officer	26
9	Unbecoming Conduct	27
10	Player Registration	28
11	Player transfers and Appeals	
12	Player Points & Club Sustainability Policies	
13	Weekly Record	30
14	Correspondence	30
15	Competition and Fixtures	31
16	Ladders	32
17	Junior Competitions	
18	Finals	
19	Ground Inspections	35
20	Interleague Matches (Combined Squads and Teams)	36
21	Coach Requirements	36
22	Codes of Conduct and Other Policies	
23	Annual Awards	
24	Selected Teams - Media	39
25	Child Safety Standards	

17 **FOOTBALL BY LAWS** 

# COLAC & DISTRICT FOOTBALL NETBALL LEAGUE INC. BY LAWS

### Preamble

These Rules must be read in conjunction with

- Laws of Australian Football
- AFL Victoria Rules and Regulations
- Official Netball Rules as set down by Netball Australia

As published in the AFL Victoria Handbook each year or as amended by notification from AFL Victoria after the printing of their Handbook.

A breach of any CDFNL By Law or Competition Rule, will attract a penalty that will be at the absolute discretion of the CDFNL Board

# 1. Definitions and Interpretation

In these By-Laws unless the contrary intention appears:

"AFL Barwon" means AFL Barwon Football Commission Limited A.C.N. 160 417 845

"Board" means the Board of the Colac & District FNL Inc.

"CDFNL" means Colac & District FNL Incorporated A00081715. In these rules referred to as "CDFNL" or "the League".

"Laws of Australian Football" means the laws of the game of Australian Football adopted by the Australian Football League as modified for the League

"League" means the Colac & District FNL Incorporated.

"RGM" means AFL Barwon Regional General Manager

The appendices and schedules attached should be read in conjunction with and form part of the By-Laws of the Colac & District FNL Incorporated.

#### **Questions Not Provided For**

In the event of any question arising that is not provided for in these Rules, the Board of the League shall have the power to decide. The interpretation of these Rules is to be decided by the Board.

# 2 League Provisions

#### 2.1 Board Meetings

The Board of the League shall meet at least 4 times during each calendar year. The scheduling of these will be at the discretion of The Board.

Information forums for Club Delegates will be held as required and deemed appropriate by The Board. Any

Club failing to be represented by a Delegate at any Information Forum without good cause will be fined.

The Treasurer shall submit to the League at each ordinary Meeting held, a statement showing the financial position of the League as at that time.

#### 2.2 Sub-Committees

The Board shall have the power to appoint Sub-Committees and may delegate any of its powers to such Sub-Committees

The Chairman shall receive an allowance as decided at the General Meeting. The Deputy Chairman shall receive an Honorarium as shall be decided at the Annual Meeting.

## 2.3 Annual Meetings

All Clubs affiliated with the League must hold their Annual Meeting prior to the Annual Meeting of the League.

#### 2.4 Club Annual Reports

Affiliated Clubs must submit to the Board a copy of their Annual Report including audited financial reports showing Profit and Loss Statements, Balance Sheet, and the AFL Barwon standard chart of accounts for the previous year within 14 days of the conduct of the Annual General Meeting.

#### 2.5 Life Members

Life Members and the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Awards

The Colac & District Football Netball League Inc may at its discretion annually elect as the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Life Members any person/s who has/have rendered outstanding service to the Board.

In accordance with Rule 14 of Rules of Association for the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc may annually elect Life Members to the League.

The Colac & District Football Netball League Inc may at its discretion annually award the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Awards to any person/s who has/have rendered outstanding service to the Board.

#### 2.5.1 Life Membership Criteria

The criteria for nomination for the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Life Membership are that the nominee must have:

- served as a Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Board member with a minimum 5 years service and given outstanding service to the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc for a minimum total period of 15 years including held the position of al Club (Football or Netball) President, Secretary or Treasurer with 15 years accumulated service in any of the three roles.
- This would also include service for a continuous period in a combination of any of the three
  positions or acted as member of the Independent Tribunal serving for 15 continuous years or
- held a role appointed or ratified by the Board for 15 continuous yearsand offered the service voluntarily
- provided 15 years continuous service directly for the league and continuous throughout each season or
- been a player with 300 games at senior level for football or netball at an affiliated the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc

#### 2.5.2 Nomination Process

Nominations for Life Membership or the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Awards must be forwarded to the RGM or nominee no later than 28 days prior to the Annual General Meeting on the appropriate nomination form.

Financial Members or Affiliate Clubs may nominate persons for Life Membership on a nomination form and in the manner approved by the Board. (Form available from AFL Barwon).

Life Memberships for Club individuals for the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc must be on a club letterhead.

The person nominated does not have to be a member of the Association.

Each nomination form must be signed by the nominator and also be seconded.

Both the nominator and the seconder must be financial Members of the Association at the time of the nomination.

- Details of the service of the nominee must be supplied on the nomination form with any appropriate support documents
- The Board will accept nominations and determine those nominees who meet the published criteria for the Award of Life Membership to be awarded Life Membership of the Association for recommendation to the Annual General Meeting
- Presentation will be at the Annual General Meeting or other appropriate function as determined by the Board
- The Board will accept nominations and determine those nominees who meet the published criteria for the award of an the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Award for recommendation to the Annual General Meeting or other appropriate the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc function

#### 2.5.3 Life Member Entitlements

Life Members of the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc are entitled to:

- Annually receive a letter from the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc acknowledging their Life membership of their respective League and
- Annually receive a complimentary Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Season Pass for entry into all games within their particular League
- Receive notification of the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Annual General meeting or Special General meeting. Note: Life members are entitled to attend but NOT vote at a League General Meeting in their own right.

#### 2.5.4 Service Award Criteria

The criteria for nomination for the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Awards are that the nominee must have:

- acted as a Club personnel with 15 years or more service with their Club or
- provided 15 years continuous service in non-chairperson positions (ie: Tribunal Member)

#### 2.5.5 Nomination Process

Nominations Inc Service Awards must be forwarded to the RGM or nominee no later than 28 days prior to the Annual General Meeting on the appropriate nomination form.

Financial Members or Affiliate Clubs may nominate persons for Service Awards on a nomination form and in the manner approved by the Board. (Form available from AFL Barwon).

Service Award for Club individuals for the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc must be on a club letterhead.

The person nominated does not have to be a member of the Association.

Each nomination form must be signed by the nominator and also be seconded.

Both the nominator and the seconder must be financial Members of the Association at the time of the nomination.

- Details of the service of the nominee must be supplied on the nomination form with any appropriate support documents
- The Board will accept nominations and determine those nominees who meet the published criteria for the Award of Life Membership to be awarded Life Membership of the Association for recommendation to the Annual General Meeting
- Presentation will be at the Annual General Meeting or other appropriate function as determined by the Board
- The Board will accept nominations and determine those nominees who meet the published criteria for the award of an the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Award for recommendation to the Annual General Meeting or other appropriate the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc function

#### 2.5.6 Service Award Entitlements

Service Award of the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc are entitled to:

Receive an appropriate plaque or other presentation acknowledging the award.

Financial Members or Affiliate Clubs may nominate persons for Service Awards on a nomination form and in the manner approved by the Board. (Form available from AFL Barwon).

Service Award for Club individuals for the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc must be on a club letterhead.

The person nominated does not have to be a member of the Association.

Each nomination form must be signed by the nominator and also be seconded. Both the nominator and the seconder must be financial Members of the Association at the time of the nomination.

- Details of the service of the nominee must be supplied on the nomination form with any appropriate support documents
- The Board will accept nominations and determine those nominees who meet the published criteria for the Award of Life Membership to be awarded Life Membership of the Association for recommendation to the Annual General Meeting

 The Board will accept nominations and determine those nominees who meet the published criteria for the award of an the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc Service Award for recommendation to the Annual General Meeting or other appropriate the Colac & District Football Netball League Inc function

# 3 Club Affiliation

## 3.1 Clubs and Affiliation

Clubs seeking Affiliation must be organisation's or bodies governed by a Constitution and Rules fully approved by the Board. Application for such affiliation from new Clubs must be made in writing and be received by the CEO at least 28 days prior to the Annual Meeting.

# 3.2 Affiliation

Each Club shall affiliate with Colac & District FNL Inc by signing an Affiliation and Agreement Form and submit the Affiliation and Agreement Form to Colac & District FNL.

## 3.3 Annual Affiliation Fee

## 3.3.1

An annual affiliation fee, the amount of which will be fixed at the Annual Meeting, must be paid to the finance officer by the Thursday prior to the commencement of the Home and Away matches.

## 3.3.2

New Clubs admitted to the League will be called upon to pay an entrance fee based upon the assets held by the League at the time of the Annual Meeting.

#### 3.4 Fines/Payment of accounts

#### 3.4.1 Fines for breach of By-Laws and Competition Rules

Fines may be imposed by the Board or their deputy for non-compliance with or violation of these by-laws.

(a) at the rates specified in the By Laws and/or Competition Rules; or

(b) if no rate is specified in the By Laws and/or Competition Rules, at the rate determined by the Board.

Notices of fines are to be sent to the Secretary of the Club and payment of such fines are to be made within thirty (30) days. If payment is not made within thirty (30) days Clubs will be dealt with by the Board as it sees fit.

# 3.4.2

No Club shall involve the League in any expense or make or enter into any agreement or controversy on behalf of the league without the written approval of the Board.

#### 3.5 Disputed Invoices

Any dispute must be finalised within payment date period through negotiation with the Board. In such instances payment of original or negotiated amount must still be made within period indicated on original invoice.

#### 3.6 AFL Victoria Community Club Sustainability Program Policy

It is a condition of the Club's Affiliation Agreement with AFL Barwon and their League that all AFL Barwon Clubs will comply in full with the AFL Victoria Player Points System (PPS), AFL Barwon Local PPS By Laws and AFL Barwon's Player Salary Cap (PSC) Policies.

Penalties will be determined as deemed appropriate by the AFL Barwon Commission, and may include but are not limited to;

- Club fines
- Loss of premiership points current season and in the future
- Suspended from finals current season and in the future
- Player / Official suspensions

# 4 Umpires and Club Officials

The appointment of Umpiring Association/s shall be decided at the Annual Meeting, or as soon thereafter as possible. Both competing Clubs are to pay within 7 days of receiving invoice, by Electronic Transfer of Funds, to cover all umpire fees for all matches on that particular day.

#### Clubs for Revision

The Investigation Committee, consisting of the Board of the league, reserves to itself the right to review the position of any Club in the League with regard to its constitution, rules, general management or conduct, and by a two-thirds majority of all Delegates present at a meeting specially called for the purpose, to exclude such Club or Clubs from the League or to impose such other penalty as it shall deem necessary. The League may fill any vacancies arising from the expulsion / departure of any club / clubs.

# 5 Club Uniforms

#### 5.1 Club Colours

Football	
Alvie	Red with white V
Apollo Bay	Brown & gold vertical stripes
Birregurra	Black, with red & white vertical stripes
Colac Imperials	Navy blue with white horizontal hoops
Irrewarra/Beeac	Black with red sash
Lorne	Black with two thin white horizontal hoops $\&$ dolphin insignia
Otway Districts	Navy blue with red v insert
Simpson	Black with gold sash
South Colac	Royal blue with white vertical stripes
Western Eagles	Navy, gold breast panel & gold eagle insignia

#### 5.2 Club Uniforms

Club uniforms, new football jumpers and netball dresses must be approved by the League before adoption. Each player must be uniformed in the Club's colors, with his number prominently and securely fixed on his back.

One advertising logo maybe placed on the back of Club jumpers below the player's number.

The front of the jumper is for the provision of logos as determined by the CDFNL Board.

A maximum of One additional Club sponsor logo is permitted on the back of Club jumpers (above the number) or on the front of shorts. (see AFL Barwon Style Guide)

Any new logos must be approved by the Board before adoption.

## 6 Club Office Bearers

Not later than 1st February each year, all affiliated clubs must lodge with the league (on the form provided), a list of all club office bearers for the ensuing year.

#### 7 Independent Tribunal

#### 7.1 Appointment

The board shall appoint an Independent Tribunal consisting of persons not directly associated with any Club in the League, who in the opinion of the Board, are competent and capable of handling any cases or disputes put before them. The Independent Tribunal will deal with Clubs, Players or Officials within the League reported for breaches of the Rules or unseemly conduct, and with any other matters referred to it by the Board of the League. They will meet when the occasion demands with only three persons from the panel to act as appointed. The Board of the League shall have the power to make appointments and / or deletions to the panel.

#### 7.1.1

Each year the Board will appoint a tribunal Chairman

#### 7.1.2

All tribunal members will be issued with official passes for the season

#### 7.2 Club Advocates

A Club advocate shall accompany any player attending the Independent Tribunal. Advocates are not permitted to be a member of the Legal profession.

#### 7.3 Attendance at Tribunal hearings

# 7.31

Players or officials charged with an offence must attend the Independent Tribunal Meeting. If necessary, the Meeting will be adjourned and the player or official penalised until attendance is confirmed. Club Secretaries (unless an alternate club official is notified to Colac & District FNL at the commencement of the season) will be contacted with dates and times of Tribunal hearings.

#### 7.3.2

Players or officials as witnesses, who are personally unable to attend the tribunal hearing for business or schooling reasons only, can submit a Statement to the tribunal, outlining reasons for non-attendance, their impressions of the circumstances or events relating to the report. The statement must include a telephone contact number that the witness will be available on and contactable at the scheduled time of the tribunal hearing. Failure to supply contact number or be available may render the witness liable to punishment.

Submission of such statement must be approved by the Operations Manager or deputy and be provided to Colac & District FNL offices no later than 12 noon on the day of the tribunal hearing.

#### 7.3.3

Players and Officials called before the Independent Tribunal or the Board to answer charges, etc. may call witnesses to give evidence on their behalf, and they may be represented at the hearing of such charges by one Official of the Club – who shall not be a member of the legal profession – who shall have the right to cross-examine any person giving evidence at such hearing and is to remain in the room at all times during such hearing as to be declared at an end. The Central Umpire may nominate any person to be a witness to any charge, but he must notify such person or Club of his intention to call such person as a witness prior to leaving the ground where the match involving such charge was played. Failure by Club Officials, Players or other persons under the jurisdiction of the League to attend and give evidence when so notified will render such Officials, Players or other persons liable to be dealt with by the Independent Tribunal as it shall deem fit. Notices served on a Club shall be deemed to have been served on all Officials and Playing members of that Club.

#### 7.3.4

The Board shall have the power of authority to prefer charges against Clubs, officials or Players for breaches of the Rules of this League and/or Laws adopted by it. All such charges are to be dealt with by the Independent Tribunal.

#### 7.3.5

Any Club which has a Player or Official required to attend an Independent Tribunal hearing and who is late for same without an acceptable excuse may be fined at the discretion of the Tribunal.

#### 7.4 Tribunal Procedures

#### 7.4.1

Hearings - Reported Players

In normal circumstances the Colac & District FNL Independent Tribunal will meet, when required, on Tuesday nights commencing at 7pm.

In the event that more than one case is scheduled, they will be heard in the order determined by the Tribunal Secretary, allowing approximately 45 minutes for each case. Should there be more than 3 cases to be heard on the one night a second Tribunal will be convened at a time, date and venue organised by Colac & District FNL. The schedule of such cases will be published on the AFL Barwon Website.

### 7.4.2

No club official can comment to the media in relation to any player/s who is/are reported by an umpire/s

or is under investigation, inclusive of when the matter is finalised. Such officials who breach this will be referred to the CDFNL Independent Tribunal.

#### 7.5 Video Evidence

Submission of other video evidence will be at the discretion of the tribunal

## 7.6 Infringements

Clubs, Players or Officials infringing any Rule of the League or Law of the Game shall be dealt with as the League may think fit, except when a penalty is provided for in these Rules.

# 7.7 Reporting of Players

# 7.7.1

A current years AFL Victoria player report pad is to be placed in the umpire's room at the beginning of the day and left there for the duration of the day's games (including Junior games). Penalty \$100

# 7.7.2

If a report is made, a copy of the report must be provided electronically by the home club to the Operations Manager, no later than 6.00pm on the day of that match. Information required: Reported player, Offended player (if applicable), Reporting umpire, alleged offence, if a tribunal is required. If electronic hardware is not available, or not functioning, this information must be conveyed directly to the Operations Manager in the same time frame. The original copy of the Notice of Report must be included in the match day paperwork envelope regardless of whether a set sanction has been accepted or not.

# 7.8 Set Sanctions (Football Only)

Note the following variation to AFL Victoria Rule 12.2

If after the game the reporting umpire doesn't indicate on the player report sheet that the offence warrants a tribunal hearing, the offending player can choose to accept the prescribed penalty by signing the player report sheet in the space provided. He can also delay this decision until noon the following morning at the latest.

The reporting umpire, the offending player and the offended player's club secretary all have until noon the day following the incident to inform the league that they wish the matter to be heard by a tribunal. If there is no official notification received by the League within the designated time frame that a tribunal is required, the relevant set sanction will be applied.

Players and/or team managers from both teams must sign the Player Report to acknowledge receipt of the form from the umpires.

Notifications regarding this section of the rule must be made to the Tribunal Secretary or nominated representative.

# 8 Investigation Officer

An Investigation Officer will be appointed by AFL Victoria from its panel of Investigation Officers to investigate any matter referred to them pursuant to AFL Victoria Rule 5.2 (Unbecoming conduct).

# 9 Unbecoming Conduct

# 9.1

Colac & District FNL Board members, Club members, Players or Umpires who allege that a player or an official of a Club has been guilty of conduct which is unbecoming to a Player or an Official of a Club or which is likely to bring the game of football into disrepute may lodge with the League a notice in writing setting out the particulars of the allegation within 5 days.

A notice under this paragraph must be lodged with the Colac & District FNL Operations Manager within five days after the date of the act or omission to which it relates unless the Board agrees to extend this period to a maximum of 30 days. An extension agreed to by the Board may be for such period and subject to such conditions as the Board thinks fit. Such investigation shall be completed within 10 days of the matter being referred to the Investigation Officer, unless, at the completion of the 10 days, the League at the request of the Investigation Officer then grants an extension of time up to a maximum of 10 days.

A Deposit of \$500 from a club requesting an investigation shall accompany the notice, which shall be forfeited in whole or part if the Investigation Officer or Independent Tribunal consider it frivolous.

If no charge is laid or is laid but found not guilty at tribunal; the club who requested the investigation will forfeit a minimum of \$300 to pay for the investigation.

If a charge is laid and player found guilty at tribunal, the club who requested the investigation will have their \$500 refunded, and the charged player's club will pay the \$300 for the investigation. (See 9.9 for Tribunal expenses.)

# 9.2

Notice of any allegation received under By-Law 9.1 shall be referred to the Investigation Officer for investigation. The Investigation Officer may investigate the allegation as he sees fit.

# 9.3

If the Investigation Officer, after investigation of the allegation, is of the opinion that the Player or Official in question may have been guilty of conduct unbecoming to a Player or an Official of a Club or is likely to bring the game of football in disrepute and that the allegation ought to be dealt with by the League Independent Tribunal as hereinafter provided, he may lodge with the League a notice in writing setting out details of the allegation.

# 9.4

If a notice is lodged with the League under By-Law 9.1, the League Operations Manager or his delegate may offer the player a Set Penalty as relevant to the charge, or fix a date, time and place for a hearing of the allegation before the League Independent Tribunal, being a date not later than 9 days after lodgement of the notice and shall advise the Player or Official in question of those particulars and forward to the Player or Official direct or care of the Club Secretary in question a copy of the notice lodged under By-Law 9.1

# 9.5

The League Independent Tribunal may regulate any proceedings brought before it under this Rule as it thinks fit, but in any such proceedings, the Player or Official against whom the allegation has been made and his advocate shall be entitled to appear before the League Independent Tribunal.

## 9.6

In any proceeding brought before a tribunal under this rule the Investigation Officer shall personally appear before it and lay any necessary charge or charges and may act as the prosecuting officer for the League.

### 9.7

If the League Independent Tribunal decides that the Player or Official in question has been guilty of conduct which, in the opinion of the League Independent Tribunal, is unbecoming to a Player or Official of a Club or which is likely to bring the game of football into disrepute, it may make such orders and give such directions in the manner as it thinks fit.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the League Independent Tribunal may:

(a) impose a fine of such amount as it thinks fit on the Player or Official in question; or,

(b) may disqualify the Player or Official in question for such period as it thinks fit.

## 9.8

The decision of the League Independent Tribunal in respect of any allegation brought before it under this Rule shall be final and binding on all parties.

#### 9.9 Expenses of Tribunal

#### 9.9.1

Any expense incurred in bringing Umpires and/or other witnesses to any meeting of the Board or Independent Tribunal in support of charges laid against Players or Officials shall be borne by the Club whose Player or Official has been charged provided that such charge be sustained.

#### 9.9.2

If Players or Official from more than one Club be charged with offences at the same meeting, and all charges are sustained, all Clubs whose Players or Officials are found guilty of the charge so preferred against them shall bear such expenses equally among them unless it can be shown that special expenses have been incurred in proving any one or more charges, in which case such special expenses will be borne by that Club whose Player or Official has, through the proving of this charge, necessitated the incurring of such special expense.

### 9.9.3

Where charges are laid and not sustained the expense incurred in calling the Umpires and/or other witnesses in support of such charge shall be borne by the League, provided that where a Player or Official from more than one Club be charged at the same meeting of the Board or Independent Tribunal, and where the expense of the hearing of the charges would have been the same had only one charge been laid at the meeting, the League will be required to contribute to such expense on a pro rata basis only.

# **10 Player Registration**

#### Football

Governed in accordance with the Rules of AFL Victoria

All registration of players is to be on the SportsTG database prior to the player taking the field.

All costs incurred by the League in regard to clearances are to be paid by the Club concerned.

Any Club suspending a player shall forward to the League within three days the name /s of such player/s, together with the relevant details. No such player so suspended shall be reinstated as a playing member of that Club or be transferred to any other Club until notice in writing of the lifting of such suspension has been lodged with the Operations Manager. A player so suspended by his Club shall have the right to appeal to the Board of the League which shall have the power to confirm or lift such suspension.

#### Netball

Netball Victoria Membership: Players, coaches & umpires must be registered with Netball Victoria before taking the court or prior to commencing participation.

Players must register themselves on the CDFNL MyNetball database via their home clubs VNA registration link prior to taking the court.

# 11 Player transfers and Appeals

#### **11.1 Football Player transfers**

Player transfers are conducted under the current AFL Victoria Rules.

All player transfers will be conducted using the AFL Victoria approved electronic data base system.

The Colac & District FNL Clearance Secretary will not endorse player transfers over the telephone

#### 11.2 Appeals against refused Transfer

All appeals against refused player transfers are handled under AFL Victoria rules by the AFL Victoria Football Development Manager.

#### 11.3 Netball Clearances

# 11.3.1

Any player requiring a clearance must complete a current clearance application form. Players must arrange for their new club to request a clearance online through the MyNetball Database.

### 11.3.2

The Club and Player must receive an email from MyNetball (results vault) from their ex-club and the league to notify them that the clearance has been granted.

#### 11.3.3

Players who owe outstanding fees or are in possession of Club/ Team property (uniform, equipment) will not be granted a clearance.

#### 11.3.4

All clearances are to be finalised on 30th June of the current season. If a player has not played with her registered Club for a minimum of one whole season, then a clearance is not required. New players are not tied to any Club until they take the court in a game.

# 12 Player Points & Club Sustainability Policies

It is a condition of the Club's Affiliation Agreement with AFL Barwon and their League that all Colac & District FNL Clubs will comply in fully with the AFL Victoria Player Points System (PPS) and Player Payment Rules & Guidelines (PPR) Policies.

Application of all Points assessments and consideration of club requests will be the responsibility of the Player Points Panel (PPP) who will use the AFL Barwon Local PPS By Laws to guide their determinations.

Penalties will be determined as deemed appropriate by the AFL Barwon Commission as outlined in the AFL Victoria PPR, and may include but are not limited to;

- Club fines
- Loss of premiership points current season and in the future
- Suspended from finals current season and in the future
- Player / Official suspensions

# 13 Weekly Record

#### 13.1 Team Lists

## 13.1.1

All senior Affiliated Clubs shall forward to the League at least 10 days prior to the commencement of the first competition match in each season, one list for "Senior and Reserve" grades, and separate lists for each of the junior grades, accurately stating all the club registered players' first name, surname and jumper numbers for inclusion in the Record for the first game.

Penalty: Post Round 4 in each competition - \$20 per name.

# 13.1.2

All senior Affiliated Clubs shall forward to the League, no later than 9.30am each Tuesday prior to the next round of the fixture, any changes of player names and numbers for "all grades team lists published in the "Record".

# 13.1.3

Team Lists for finals fixtures must be separated to reflect 'Seniors', 'Reserves' 'Under 18s and Under 14.5s with a recommended maximum number of 30 players on each list.

# 14 Correspondence

The League's Football or Netball Operations Manager must be advised, and provided with a copy, of any relevant correspondence with the CDUA, AFL Victoria, or other Leagues.

#### 14.1 Unauthorised Media Statements

No club shall permit any of its officers or members to make any statement to the media (including radio, television and all newspapers) in connection with any policies or acts of the Board, Tribunal or association without the prior approval of the Board (or Junior Committee). To do so shall render the club concerned liable to:

- (a) a fine for any breach at the discretion of the Board;
- (b) suspension from the League;
- (c) expulsion from the League in accordance with the Rules of the Association

# **15 Competition and Fixtures**

#### 15.1 Fixture

The Fixture including the commencement date and number of playing weeks shall be constructed each year by the Board as deemed appropriate.

Should there be any alteration to the number of teams comprising the League, the Board shall have the power to make any necessary adjustments or alterations to the fixture as deemed appropriate.

#### 15.2 Home and Away Rounds

The league shall conduct a series of 18 (or such number as the Board shall from time to time determine) home and away matches for Senior, Reserve and all Junior Grades.

All affiliated CDFNL clubs must field Seniors and Reserves teams in the designated competitions.

Clubs are to field teams in the available Junior Competitions where possible.

#### 15.3 Failure to fill an engagement:

#### Football

#### 15.3.1

In the event of a Club failing to play a match as listed, such Clubs shall pay the Umpires' fees, forfeit the premiership points for the match, and may be further dealt with by the Board. Any Club failing to finish a match shall be dealt with by the Board and may be fined. In the event of any Club forfeiting a match, the opposing team shall submit a team list in a manner similar to that required had the match been played. Players named on such team list shall be treated as having played in that match.

#### Netball

# 15.3.2

If either team is unable to take the court at the correct starting time, both teams are given five (5) minutes grace to field a team, or otherwise the offending team will forfeit the match.

FINE: \$100.00 (per team)

#### 15.3.3

If a team forfeits a match, the opposing team shall be awarded four (4) points for the match and a percentage of 20 goals to 0. The forfeiting team is to advise the AFL Barwon Netball Manager of the intention to forfeit by 5 pm on the day before the scheduled match.

FINE: \$100.00 (per team)

#### 15.3.4

If a team forfeits a match qualification will be awarded to the non-offending team entered on the database. 28 quarters will be allocated across the players at coach's instruction.

#### 15.4 Obstructing the Game

Each Club shall take reasonable measures to keep the playing arena clear for play, and , if on an appeal by any Club, and in the opinion of the Board such measures have not been taken, the Board may order such match to be replayed on any League ground.

#### 15.5 Intoxicating Liquor on Playing Arena

No intoxicating liquor shall be permitted onto the playing arena by any club member, player or official. Appropriate signs are to be placed on fences of grounds. The Board shall inflict a fine for each breach of this rule.

# 16 Ladders

#### 16.1 Point Allocation

- (a) In the home and away matches, four points will be allotted for a win, four points for a team in whose favour a forfeit or walkover is ruled, two points for a draw and zero points for a loss. Where an affiliated Senior Club deemed to be not financial competes in a home and away match, four points will be awarded to the opposition club.
- (b) The League shall prepare a weekly ladder for each Division and in addition to awarding points for each win, forfeit, walkover, draw or loss it shall also prepare a percentage table comparing the total points scored by each team against the total points scored against each team and in the event that selection for the finals series is between teams with the same number of points, the team with the highest percentage points will be entitled to participate in the finals series ahead of a team with lower percentage points. All decisions of the League in respect of the calculation of the points and percentages shall be final and binding.

#### 16.2 Scores Used to Calculate

The scores used by the League to calculate the points and percentages for each Divisional ladder shall be based upon the scores contained in the goal umpires' cards. Should these scores disagree; the timekeeping cards may be used as the basis for calculating points and percentages in accordance with Rule 12.7 of "Laws of the Game of Football" as published in the AFL Victoria Handbook each year.

#### 16.3 Forfeit Calculations

In the event of a game being forfeited, the defaulting team shall not include the game in club playing records. The team against whom the forfeiting team was to play, shall be awarded match points and shall be entitled to include the game in the records of its players. Percentages will be calculated according to AFL Vic Rule 2, and AFL Laws of the Game 10.7.

#### 16.4 Non-Completion of Matches

(a) Failure by any club to play an arranged match as set out in the fixture of the League from time to time shall render the club liable to a Fine for breach to be fixed by the CDFNL Board unless a satisfactory

reason is received by 5.00 p.m. on the Monday following the failure to play the arranged match.

- (b) If any match which has been started and cannot be completed for reasons beyond the control of the affiliated Senior or affiliated Junior Club or Clubs, or where a match has been cancelled at the direction of the officiating umpire, the following procedures shall apply:
  - (i) Subject to clause (iii) below, if a game is concluded prior to half time and the match cannot proceed within the scheduled time, the teams shall depart the arena and the match will be declared a draw. Each team will be awarded two premiership points and the scores of the teams at the time the match was interrupted would be used to calculate the percentages.
  - (ii) Subject to clause (iii) below, if a game has progressed beyond half time and is unable to proceed with the scheduled time for the match, the teams will depart the arena and the scores of the clubs at the time the match was interrupted shall be deemed to be final scores of the match and shall be used to calculate percentages.

The team with the highest score will be declared the winner and awarded four premiership points.

(iii) If a match has been started and cannot be completed within the time scheduled for reasons within the control of any club, such club will be dealt with by the Board at its absolute discretion in any way it sees fit.

## 17 Junior Competitions

#### Football

#### 17.1 Player Numbers

Where a team has the minimum number of players to start a match but not a full team (excluding bench), the team with the numerical advantage must either "loan" players to the opposition or play with an equal number of players on the field unless:

- A loan is offered but after evening up numbers there are still excess players in which case the team
  with the numerical advantage can play with one extra player; or
- The team with the numerical advantage only has one extra player than the opposition in which case the team with the numerical advantage can play with that extra player; or
- The team with minimum numbers refuses to accept "loan" players in which case the team with the numerical advantage can play at full strength.
- Team Managers and Umpires are required to sign off on player numbers on the competition match report prior to the match commencing.

## 17.2

Starting time of Junior and Reserves matches will be determined such that the Senior game can commence no later than 2.00pm. (time may be deducted from each of the last two quarters to ensure this.)

# 17.3

All Under 14.5 matches shall consist of 4 quarters of 15 minutes, U18s and Reserves shall consist of 4 quarters of 18 minutes.

# 17.4

There is no limit to the number of interchange players in junior competitions. (Except as in Competition Rule 19.5)

#### 17.5

The home team is to provide one good quality size 5 leather football for U18 matches & size 4 leather football for Under 14.5 matches.

# 17.6

In all Under 14.5 matches a player can bounce the ball only twice. After this he must dispose of the ball and cannot regain possession until the ball has been touched by another player.

# 17.7

The only time that a Club Official is allowed onto the ground during play is to attend to an injured player.

# 17.8

Any player found guilty of a field offence by the Independent Tribunal or suspended during the current season is not eligible to be awarded the Fairest and Best award for that season.

# 17.9

In Junior competitions, any player who is ordered off three times during the season will receive an automatic suspension of one game in home and away or finals matches. A player who is ordered off for a fourth time during the current season will face the CDFNL Tribunal whose decision will be binding.

#### 17.10

A record is to be kept of all yellow and red cards that have been issued throughout the season. They are to be noted on the Umpire's Match report sheet and entered onto sporting pulse by the home team manager when entering match results.

# 18 Finals

#### 18.1

The teams to compete in the Finals Series at the end of the Home and Away season will be decided on by the match points and percentage basis or by Match Ratio where applicable. The number of teams to compete in the Finals Series is to be decided annually. The order of Finals matches shall be: Qualifying Final, Elimination Final, Second Semi-Final, First Semi-Final, Preliminary Final, Grand Final.

Premiership Clubs in all grades of competition are to be presented with a premiership cup, suitably inscribed with the grade and the year. The cups are to remain the property of the club. All Rules and Premiership Conditions are as prescribed by AFL Victoria and adopted by the League, except where expressly altered by the rules.

#### 18.2 Grounds Committee

The Grounds Committee shall consist of the Board of Management. Subject to 17(a) the Grounds Committee duty shall be to appoint grounds for the Final Series and to deal with any disputes that may arise over grounds. The decisions of the Grounds Committee in these areas shall be final and binding Central Reserve (Colac) shall be the venue for all Finals unless

- i. the ground is unfit for play
- ii. the ground is required for Major League Matches.

#### 18.3 Entrance Fees

The Board shall be responsible for the fixing and collection of all entrances fees at all finals series matches. The Board may delegate its authority for the collection of entrance fees from time to time.

#### **18.4 Finals Uniforms**

- (a) The team placed highest on the ladder prior to the commencement of the finals series shall wear their registered guernsey and home shorts unless this is varied by the Board. After the Elimination and Qualifying games the first team to proceed to the next round will be considered the home team.
- (b) The team placed highest on the ladder prior to the commencement of the finals series shall use the home team rooms and Coaches Box unless this is varied by the League or its appointee. After the Elimination and Qualifying games the first team to proceed to the next round will be considered the home team.

## 18.5 Catering in Finals

Charges for catering at finals shall be determined by the Board on an annual basis.

If there are more clubs than required for the current season's finals catering, the club catering for the previous season's grand final shall not be eligible to cater for the current season's finals.

Any club failing or declining to fulfill obligations allotted to it during the Finals series will be fined \$100 per person that has not been supplied, or if a club declines to fulfill its obligations, the League will employ persons to fulfill the obligations at the expense of the declining club.

# **19 Ground Inspections**

#### 19.1

Each Club shall provide a ground which, in the opinion of the Grounds Committee, is suitable for match play. Regulation goal and behind posts must be in place with goal, boundary and centre lines clearly marked. Goal and behind posts must be padded to the satisfaction of the Grounds Committee. Should during the season, the ground of any Club falls below the standard required by the League, then that Club shall be called upon to show cause why future home matches should be played on such ground, and such club's future home matches may be ordered to be played on the home ground of the visiting team.

#### 19.2

In the event of the Officials of any two Clubs mutually agreeing that the home ground of one of those Clubs, on whose ground their next match is to be played, is unfit for play then the Clubs may transfer the venue of that match to such other ground as shall be mutually agreed upon, provided that notice of such transfer is given to the Operations Manager by the Official of both Clubs concerned no later than 8.00am on the day of the match. A representative from each club shall complete the official Match Day Checklist on the app as provided by the insurer.

Penalty: Not completing and submitting checklist - \$50 first offence, subsequent offences \$100.

# 20 Interleague Matches (Combined Squads and Teams)

Any Player who has been selected in a combined League Squad and who neglects to train with such squad, shall, on failing to satisfy the League as to his reasons for not having trained with the squad, to be dealt with as the Board sees fit.

Any player who has been selected in a combined League Team and who neglects to play with such team, shall, on failing to satisfy the League as to his reasons for not having played with the team, to be dealt with as the Board sees fit.

# 21 Coach Requirements

#### 21.1 Football

#### Refer AFL Victoria Rule 14

All coaches of AFL Vic Country clubs are required to hold a current Foundation Coaching Accreditation prior to the commencement of the season. The penalty to be imposed by leagues if coaches continue to coach having not obtained the necessary accreditation must be i) a \$200 fine (Senior) or \$100 fine (Junior) and ii) the loss of match points for the matches won by the team whilst the unaccredited coach continues to coach. In the event of no match points being received the league must apply the above fines. Fines are applied once only (\$200 or \$100) and are not applicable to every match.

In the instance where coaches are not accredited and commit to completing the relevant requirements within 7 days of receiving a request from AFL Barwon (or as otherwise agreed upon) the following bonds for clubs are to apply \$200 (Senior) and \$100 (Junior).

Where a coach fails to complete the relevant accreditation requirements in this timeframe, the bond paid by the club is forfeited and the above penalties will be enforced.

#### 21.2 Netball:

# 21.2.1

All coaches of Colac & District FNL Clubs are required to obtain or update their Netball Victoria Foundation Accreditation prior to April 30th of the current season. (Accreditation must also be current if a higher level is held)

# 21.2.1.1

The relevant paperwork confirming accreditation must be submitted prior to April 30th to the AFL Barwon - Netball Operations Manager.

# 21.2.1.2

All coaches must hold a current pass level or sit and pass the All-Australian Netball Section 1 Umpire Theory Exam prior to commencing their first coaching season.

# 21.2.1.3

All clubs must submit a coaching list prior to the start of the season with all coaches' current accreditation details.

The penalty to be imposed by the CDFNL Board if coaches continue to coach having not obtained the necessary accreditation must be:

- i) a \$200 fine (Senior) or \$100 fine (Junior) and
- the loss of match points for the matches won by the team whilst the unaccredited coach continues to coach.

In the event of no match points being received the AFL Barwon must apply the above fines. Fines are applied once only (\$200 or \$100) and are not applicable to every match.

# 21.2.2

In the event of the appointed Coach being absent, the nominated person in charge of that team must be accredited

# 21.2.3

Coaching panels may consist of a maximum of two accredited people for each team

# 21.2.4

Any change of Coach during the season due to extenuating circumstances will require approval from the Board

# 21.2.5

Coaches are not permitted to umpire the team which they are listed to coach -

# 22 Codes of Conduct and Other Policies

# 22.1

All players, officials and Club members at all League matches shall be subject to the Policies and Codes of Conduct as issued by the Board from time to time.

# 22.2

The Board is required to adopt complementary rules and regulations in football competitions under their respective control and jurisdiction as those of AFL Victoria and AFL Victoria.

#### 22.3

The Colac & District Board has also adopted a range of AFL Victoria, Netball Victoria and AFL Barwon policies. These include, but are not restricted to:

- Infectious Diseases Policy
- No Smoking & Alcohol Management Policy
- AFL Vilification and Discrimination Policy
- Anti-Doping Policy

- Gender Policy
- De-Registration Policy
- Privacy Policy
- Responsible Serving of Alcohol
- Looking After Mates
- Netball Australia Member Protection Policy
- AFL Barwon Cybersafety Policy
- AFL Barwon Constitution
- AFL Barwon Local PPS By Laws
- AFL National Age Dispensation Policy

# 23 Annual Awards

Any annual award aligned with a specific named person will have a 10-year sunset clause attached to the naming of the award.

# 23.1 Best and Fairest Awards

#### 23.1.1

Official League field/court umpires shall immediately following the conclusion of the match select their three fairest and best players in the match. They shall then number one, two and three in order of preference in a sealed addressed envelope their three nominations. Their number one nomination to receive three votes, number two nomination two votes, and number three nomination one vote. They shall then hand the sealed envelope to the Home Club Secretary or Team Manager.

# 23.1.2

If the two or more Central Umpire system is in operation, then the Central Umpires shall confer, agree upon a joint nomination and otherwise comply with paragraph 24.1.1 hereof.

# 23.1.3

At the end of the Home and Away rounds of matches, the League shall gather all votes made during the minor rounds and the votes shall be counted and the player or players receiving the largest number of votes shall be awarded as the best & fairest. In the case of an equal number of votes being awarded to more than one player, then players receiving such equal number of votes shall be declared joint winners and separate medals/trophies shall be struck and awarded.

# 23.1.4

Any player found guilty by the Independent Tribunal on any charge shall be ineligible for the award of Best and Fairest during the current season, except where the charge relates to time wasting.

23.1.5

Where the highest vote getter has been ruled ineligible, the second highest vote getter will be declared the winner.

# 23.2 Goal Kicking Award

After the completion of the Home and Away series, the player who has kicked the greatest number of goals during that season shall be awarded the goal kicking award for each grade.

# 23.3 Club Championships

Each Year Club Championship Awards will be awarded according to games won by all teams within the club competing throughout the season, including both Football & Netball.

Points allocation is Senior Football 4 points, Reserves Football 2 points, A Grade Netball 4 points, B Grade netball 2 points and C Grade netball 2 points.

# 23.4 Colac & District Football Netball League Awards

# 23.4.1 Colac & District FL Senior Medal

An award known as the "Jack Mahoney Memorial Trophy" shall be made each year to the fairest and best player or players in the Colac & District Football League senior grade competition.

## 23.4.2 Colac & District FL A Grade Medal

An award known as the "Val Russell Medal" shall be made each year to the fairest and best player or players in the Colac & District Football League A Grade competition.

## 23.4.3 Ray Cockerill Medal

An award presented each year to the Colac & District FL Best Player in the Under 18 Football Grand Final

# 23.4.4 Bec Finn Medal

An award presented each year to the Colac & District FL Best Player in the A Grade Netball Grand Final

# 23.4.5 Emma McVilly Memorial Award

An award presented each year to the Colac & District FL Under 19 Player who receives the highest number of best and fairest votes in the Colac & District Football League A Grade competition

# 24 Selected Teams - Media

# 24.1

Senior teams must be entered with their playing position selected, onto the SportsTG database each Thursday night prior to 6.00pm

# 24.2

Clubs must enter separate positions for eighteen players, three interchange and up to three emergencies.

# 24.3

Fines will be issued for noncompliance and/or each player named on the official team sheets that were not named in the selected list of twenty-four.

Penalty \$20 per player (Max \$100)

# 25 Child Safety Standards

APPLICABLE TO ALL PERSONS WORKING WITH JUNIORS UP TO AND INCLUDING THE UNDER 18 GRADE.

This check replaces the police check and is free for volunteers. It is mandatory by law as of January 2007 for coaches and volunteers to obtain this check if they undertake any of the following roles:

- (a) Club personnel including coaches, trainers etc appointed or seeking appointment for reward (\$70 charge for employees)
- (b) Volunteer personnel who will or are likely to travel away overnight with teams of players under 18 years of age and
- (c) Persons appointed or seeking appointment to a role in which that person is likely to have individual and unsupervised contact with players Under 18 years of age.

How to apply?

- Complete a Working with Children Check application form. Application forms are available online and from participating outlets of Australia Post.
- Organise your proof of identity documentation.
- Organise a Passport size photo.
- Take your completed application form, proof of identity documentation, passport size photo to a
  participating Australia Post outlet. If you are in PAID employment you must pay the \$70 fee. If you
  are a Volunteer there is no fee payable.

We strongly suggest that you get this process underway ASAP and organize all your junior personnel to undertake the check. Perhaps organize a club representative to collect the forms from Australia Post and hand them out to each coach.

# FOOTBALL COMPETITION RULES

# **Table of Contents**

1 Definitions and Interpretation	4
2 Laws of Australian Football	4
3 Registrations	
4 Ground Facilities	4
5 Interchange	4
6 Coaches	4
7 Runners	4
8 Trainers and Medical Staff	4
9 Watercarriers	4
10 Timekeepers	4
11 Team Managers	4
12 Playing Times	4
13 Time of Quarters	4
14 Extra Time In Finals	4
15 Footballs	5
16 Team Sheets	
17 Match Reports	
18 Match Results and Details	
19 Player Eligibility	5
20 Umpires	
21 Ground Encroachment	
22 Disputes	
23 Barrackers and Supporters	
24 Practice Matches	5

# COLAC & DISTRICT FOOTBALL NETBALL LEAGUE INC. FOOTBALL COMPETITION RULES

# Preamble

These Rules must be read in conjunction with

- Laws of Australian Football
- AFL Vic Country Rules and Regulations as published in the AFL Vic Country Handbook each year or as amended by notification from the AFL Vic Country after the printing of their Handbook.

A breach of any CDFNL By Law or Competition Rule, will attract a penalty that will be at the absolute discretion of the CDFNL Board.

# 1 Definitions and Interpretation

In these Competition Rules unless the contrary intention appears:

"Board" means the Board of Colac & District FNL Inc.

"CDFNL" means Colac & District FNL Incorporated. In these rules referred to as "CDFNL" or "the League".

"Laws of Australian Football" means the laws of the game of Australian Football adopted by the Australian Football League as modified for the League

"League" means the Colac & District FNL Incorporated.

The appendices and schedules attached should be read in conjunction with and form part of the By-Laws of the Colac & District Football & Netball League.

# 2 Laws of Australian Football

All games shall be played in strict accordance with the "Laws of Australian Football" as determined by the AFL or modified by AFL Vic Country or the League.

# 3 Registrations

# 3.1

Every player must be a registered member of their Club and approved by their Club Committee.

#### 3.2

A player must be registered with the CDFNL on SportsTG prior to the commencement of the first game he plays for the Club each year. The registration must be entered onto the official AFL Vic Country Club database.

# 3.3 Playing Ineligible Players

Any player playing with any Club affiliated with the League without first being granted the necessary Clearance and /or Permit required under these Rules shall incur a penalty to be decided by the Board or the Independent Tribunal at the discretion of the Board.

Any Club/s playing an ineligible player/s will forfeit such match and all points, both score and match, and in addition will be fined at the discretion of the Board, regardless of the result of the match. The opposing Club will receive the match points.

# 4 Ground Facilities

# 4.1

Each Club shall provide a ground which, in the opinion of the Grounds Committee, is suitable for match play. Regulation goal and behind posts must be in place with goal, boundary and centre lines clearly marked. Goal and behind posts must be padded to the satisfaction of the Grounds Committee. Should during the season, the ground of any Club fall below the standard required by the League, then that Club shall be called upon to show cause why future home matches should be played on such ground, and such club's future home matches may be ordered to be played on the home ground of the visiting team.

## 4.2

In the event of the Officials of any two Clubs mutually agreeing that the home ground of one of those Clubs, on whose ground their next match is to be played, is unfit for play then the Clubs may transfer the venue of that match to such other ground as shall be mutually agreed upon, provided that notice of such transfer is given to the League by the Official of both Clubs concerned no later than 8.00am on the day of the match.

#### 4.3

The ground must be marked in accordance with the Laws of the Game unless impractical to do so. Variations are to be approved by the Board.

#### 4.4

In terms of the AFL Vic Country Acceptable Ground Conditions & Layout, the actual boundary line of the playing area shall be no less than three (3) metres from the fence line.

#### 4.5

All Clubs are to have a suitable stretcher available at their ground. The home club is to make available their stretcher at the interchange shed for all games of all grades during the Home and Away series. In the final's series, clubs are to have available their own stretcher.

# 4.6

All clubs must provide locks on doors to visiting team and umpires' dressing rooms.

## 4.7

A separate dressing room must be available for umpires. Clubs should also provide dressing room facilities for female umpires when applicable.

# 5 Interchange

# 5.1

Interchange Stewards are to be provided by each Club for each match, such stewards to be in white coats.

# 5.2

The Interchange Steward will record the jumper numbers of players who commence on the interchange bench at the commencement of each quarter. It is the responsibility of team managers from both competing Clubs to notify the appointed Interchange Steward of the jumper numbers of players on the interchange bench at the commencement of the game and then at each quarter break.

#### 5.3

The Interchange Stewards will also as a minimum, record all players (time and jumper number) ordered from the field. Umpires are to be instructed not to start their match until Interchange Stewards are in attendance.

## 5.4

Players sent from the field for bleeding are to report to the interchange stewards for clearance to go back on the field.

Clubs not providing an interchange steward for any match shall be fined \$20.00 for that match.

#### 5.5

All clubs are to provide a permanent interchange box set close to the fence / boundary and in clear visibility to the Umpires. Failure to provide such suitable box shall result in a \$50 fine per match day.

# 6 Coaches

# 6.1

The non-playing coach of any team is not allowed on the playing arena during the progress of the match except at the quarter intervals. During the progress of the match the non-playing coach, interchange players (other than in warming up) and other officials must be in the restricted area as marked by the 12-metre line.

# 6.2

Only the team captain of the day shall be permitted to speak to the Field Umpire at the intervals during the progress of the match (other than if requesting the umpire for a count of players on the playing surface, which can also be requested by the official club runner for that match). Any breach of this rule shall be reported by the Umpire and be referred to the League Independent Tribunal and if found guilty shall incur a penalty as deemed appropriate by the Board.

# 7 Runners

# 7.1 No of Runners

All grades are only permitted one (1) runner.

## 7.2 Eligibility to act as runner

## 7.2.1

No person who is a registered player or an official of any club, other than his home club whether affiliated or not, or who is under disqualification or suspension by his home club or League, shall act as an official runner in any competition match, or any other match in which an AFL Vic Country affiliated Club or League is participating.

## 7.2.2

No coach or assistant coach of an AFL Vic Country open age team shall act as a runner in a match in which a team of his club is participating.

#### 7.3 Duties of Runners

# 7.3.1

Team runner(s) shall not have affixed to his or her person communication device which includes but is not limited to headsets, microphones or earpieces or water bottles.

## 7.3.3

The sole duty of the runner shall be to confer with the player or players of his/her club and to immediately leave the playing arena.

#### 7.4 Runners uniforms

The Official Runner of each Club must wear the League's official runners' uniform as supplied - shorts, t/ shirt or track top with ("CDFNL runner, League sponsor name as nominated" on back). Club football socks are not to be worn by runners.

# 8 Trainers and Medical Staff

# 8.1

Club trainers may enter the arena at any time during the match or intervals but only to attend to an injured player or to replace a damaged uniform and for no other purpose whatsoever. Trainers may also carry water as part of their duties.

#### 8.2

Club trainers must wear white or navy trousers. Trainers can carry water.

# 9 Watercarriers

## 9.1 Eligibility to act as water carrier

#### 9.1.1

No coach or assistant coach of a AFL Vic Country open age team shall act as a water carrier in any CDFNL match.

#### 9.12

The minimum age of persons carrying water is ten (10) years of age.

#### 9.2 Water carrier uniforms

#### 9.2.1

Clubs are limited to four (4) persons carrying water, who must be numbered 1 to 4 and names entered on the team sheet. If the Captain is not satisfied with the uniform of any opposing players or officials, he shall bring the matter to the attention of the central umpire. All infringements of this rule will result in a fine for each offence.

#### 9.3 Water carrier duties

#### 9.3.1

Watercarriers may enter the arena only after a Goal has been scored or at intervals, but only to provide water to players and for no other purpose whatsoever and to immediately leave the playing arena once the drink has been delivered, and before play recommences (Refer AFL VICTORIA COUNTRY Rule 18.2.)

# 9.3.2

Water carriers are not permitted to operate constantly from the Coaches box area but must be around the boundary area against the fence while not delivering water.

# 10 Timekeepers

#### 10.1

Each Club is to appoint one responsible and efficient timekeeper, who shall be equipped with a stop clock. A bell, gong or siren is to be provided by the Home Club and is to be capable of being heard across the ground at its furthest point. Where electrical equipment is provided, the Club must have available an emergency hand operated bell or gong. The device is to be sounded five minutes prior to the time decided on for the commencement of play.

#### 10.2

Independent Timekeepers shall be appointed by the League for Senior Grade Finals matches.

#### 10.3

Clubs will be fined for each official (boundary umpire, goal umpire or timekeeper) not in attendance or causing a late start of play.

# 11 Team Managers

#### 11.1 Home Team Manager

The Home Team Manager is responsible for the following match day duties

- Provide Timekeepers cards as issued by the League
- Ensure Timekeeper is available
- Provide Umpires with Score Cards as issued by the League, Best & Fairest Vote Cards and envelopes as issued by the League and a current year's report form pad.
- Provide umpires with CDFNL Umpires Match Report form

- Provide Interchange steward with Interchange Sheets as issued by the League
- Provide footballs as per Rules
- Provide Team Sheet to the umpires, showing all players with correct jumper numbers and all officials
  with correct numbers where applicable generated from the AFL Vic Country Data Base and signed by
  the Team Manager
- · Provide any sponsors Special Award vote sheets for all grades
- Ensure Field, Goal and Boundary Umpires are available where no CDFUA appointment is made
- Enter Press Reports on AFL Vic Country web-based data base at the end of each game in accordance with these rules
- Email ALL player report details to the Operations Manager at the end of each game

#### 11.2 Away Team Manager

The Away Team Manager is responsible for the following match day duties

- Provide Team Sheet to umpires, showing all players with correct jumper numbers and all officials with correct numbers where applicable generated from AFL Vic Country Data Base and signed by the Team Manager
- Ensure Timekeeper is available
- Ensure Interchange Steward is available
- · Ensure Field, Goal and Boundary Umpires are available where no CDFUA appointment is made

#### 11.3 Both Home and Away Team Managers

Both Team managers are responsible for the following match day duties

- Complete the AFL Vic Country Match Day Ground Safety checklist
- Obtain advice of any reported players from the central umpires after each game and collect a copy of any player reports from that game

#### 11.4 Team Sheet

To be handed to Umpire prior to the start of game. Participating players names in alphabetical order and PRINTED - surname first, Name of Official Runner to be shown. Team captain to be indicated. Name of coach to be generated on the SP Team Sheet. Name/s of water carriers to be included. Must be signed by Club Official.

#### 11.4.1

On the occasion of a clerical error, at the request of the club or umpire, correction may be made on match day. In the event of an error being discovered by the League Administrator, the club is to be notified and be given the opportunity to correct such mistakes and a fine of up to \$50.00 may apply. Failure to do so may result in the loss of match points. All offences are to be assessed individually and the club be given the opportunity to present their case to the Board. In a case where a mistake is deemed to be deliberate, i.e. false names, it would then be investigated by the league administrator to determine if sanctions are warranted, and if necessary, to be brought before the Independent Tribunal.

#### 11.5 Boundary Umpire

Must wear white shirt and shorts and have a whistle.

## 11.6 Players

To be correctly attired in club uniform.

# 11.7 Time Sheet and Score Cards

Must be signed at completion of game. All cards to be handed to Central Umpire within 15 minutes of conclusion of each game.

# 11.8 Timekeeper

To note on timecard team /s responsible for late start after quarter and three-quarter time intervals of no longer than 5 minutes.

# 11.9 Umpire

At completion of each game an Official of each Club is to check at the door of the Umpires' Room to receive "All Clear" or otherwise. Please ensure that each team is ready to take the field on time at commencement of match and again following half time interval.

# 11.10

At the completion of each game, the Central umpire is to complete the "Umpire's Match Report", as provided by the home club. This form must include details of any player who was sent from the ground with a yellow or red card.

# 12 Playing Times

#### 12.1 Duration of Games

Playing times for Seniors, Reserves Under 18 and Under 14.5 games will be no later than:

Home & Away Games

	Start	Quarters	¼ time	½ time	¾ time
Seniors	2.00 pm	20 min + TO	5 min	15 min	5 min
Reserves	12.00 pm	18 min	5 min	5 min	5 min
Under 18's	10.30 am	18 min	5 min	5 min	5 min
Under 14.5's	9.15 am	15 min	5 min	5 min	5 min

If early games (prior to Seniors) are running behind time at half time the last 2 quarters are to be shortened accordingly to allow the game to finish on time. This provision is NOT applicable in finals games

### 12.1.1

All Senior Home and Away matches shall commence (no later than 2.00pm) The Reserve Grade matches are to commence at 12.00pm, with 10 minutes grace.

## 12.1.2

Any Club not ready to commence play at the expiration of 10 minutes grace shall be fined unless an acceptable excuse can be given to the League. Any Club not ready to commence a Senior Grade game by 2.30pm or a Reserve grade game by 12.50pm shall forfeit the match, and in addition shall pay the Umpires' expenses for that match. Timekeper's cards will be taken as final as to the time of the start of play. Umpires will note on their report the cause of any delay in starting, and whether either, or both teams were responsible for such late start. If, in the opinion of the Board, the failure of any Club to commence before the designated forfeit time was occasioned by circumstances outside the control of that Club, the Board may, if they see fit, order such match to be played.

# 13 Time of Quarters

All Senior grade matches shall consist of four quarters of 20 minutes duration with time on to be added to each quarter to which it is incurred. All Reserve grade matches shall consist of four quarters of 18 minutes duration. Time on is only to be applied in the Finals Series. All Under 14.5 matches shall consist of 4 quarters of 15 minutes, and Under 18s shall consist of 4 quarters of 18 minutes.

#### 13.1 Quarter Time

The time allowed between the first and second quarter of a match shall, in the Central Umpires opinion, be enough to permit teams to change ends, but shall not exceed five minutes. Teams exceeding this period shall be fined. Timekeepers are to note the team infringing.

# 13.2 Half Time

At half time the Senior grade players may leave the playing arena for not more than 15 minutes. The Reserve grade players may have an interval of 5 minutes. The Club represented by Players, Umpires or other Officials responsible for delay in resuming play, as noted by the Timekeepers, shall be fined and may be further dealt with by the Board.

#### 13.3 Three Quarter Time

The time allowed between the third and fourth quarters shall not exceed five minutes. Teams exceeding this period, as noted by the timekeepers, shall be fined.

# 14 Extra Time In Finals.

# 14.1

There shall be no drawn matches in any finals. In the event of scores being level at the elapsed time, the timekeepers are instructed to sound the siren. Coaches are permitted to address players at the end of the game whilst the Goal Umpires confer. Players must be in position to recommence the game prior to the goal umpires returning to their position.

### 14.2

On receiving confirmation that the scores are level, the match shall recommence with the teams kicking to the same end as in the final quarter and two five-minute periods with time on (as appropriate) shall be played with teams changing ends after the first five minute period immediately the siren sounds. Coaches are not permitted to address players at any stage after the extra time period has commenced.

#### 14.3

In the event of scores being level after the two five-minute periods the timekeepers are to be instructed to keep the second period of extra time continuing until the next score, at which time the siren will sound as soon as the goal umpire signals the score and receives the "all clear" from the Field umpire.

## 15 Footballs

#### 15.1

All footballs used for matches will be determined by the Board including any sponsor brand requirements

# 15.2

Football for all CDFNL senior, reserves and Under 18 games will be Size 5. Size 4 Leather footballs are to be used in all CDFNL Under 14.5 matches.

Two suitably branded footballs in good condition and order, including one new one for Senior Games, are to be provided by the Home Club in each match except for the Finals Series when footballs are provided by the League.

Reserve Grade home and away matches must have two approved used footballs provided.

# 16 Team Sheets

#### 16.1

Team sheets generated from the AFL Vic Country Data Base and web site with full name and numbers signed by Captain or Club Official responsible are to be handed to central umpire prior to commencement of each game. Only players registered with the AFL Vic Country or players who have a Registration Form attached to the Team Sheet are eligible to compete.

Club Secretaries are responsible for correct names as well as seeing that the names of trainers, runners and medical staff are shown in the space provided. Coach, captain, and vice-captain and any other official entering the arena should be identified on the team sheet. All non-participants must be deleted or have a clear line drawn through their name.

Player number must match the number recorded in the football record. A notation of a variation of jumper number must be made on the team sheet to indicate exceptional circumstances.

#### 16.2

All authorised persons, apart from Runners, Trainers and Water Carriers, are always to remain in the Coaches Box during play, or within the confines of the perimeter lines surrounding the Coach's Box.

Other match day staff must be stationed outside the perimeter fence or fence line.

# 17 Match Reports

# 17.1

The Secretary of the home Club must complete the press report, online using the AFL Vic Country Data Base, for the matches played that day. Scores must be entered no later than 30 (thirty) minutes from the conclusion of each game. The final scores for the Senior Game (1st eighteen) must be entered no later than 5.15pm, with full details entered NO LATER than 6pm on the day of games played.

# 17.2

Full Details must be entered on the Club AFL Vic Country data base on the day the game is played by:

Seniors - 6.00pm

Reserves - 3.30pm

All Juniors - 1.30pm

Where Sunday games are played other arrangements MAY BE put in place.

# 17.3

The Secretary of the home Club must email any player reports (or relevant details) to AFL Barwon at the conclusion of each game to: michael@aflbarwon.com.au

# 18 Match Results and Details

Senior teams to be entered onto club database by 6.00pm Thursday in their positions. Clubs failing to do so for either Home & Away Games, or Finals will be fined \$20.00 for each default.

#### 18.1

Home Club Team Managers shall place all documents in the envelope provided by AFL Barwon and hand to the Central Umpire as soon as possible at the completion of the match.

Documents to be included are: Both Team Sheets, all 4 scorecards, Interchange Sheets, Umpire's Comments Sheet, White Copy - Notice of Player Report Form. (if any reports laid)

# **19 Player Eligibility**

A player must play at least three matches with his Club in the current season to be eligible to play with that Club in the Finals Series.

#### 19.1

All games played in the Under 18 competition during the home and Away series shall count as the equivalent of Reserve grade matches toward qualifying for the Finals Series.

#### 19.2

Any player who plays in more than six matches in the Senior grade competition during the current Home and Away season is not eligible to play in the Reserve grade Finals unless he has also played in at least six matches in the Reserve competition during the same season.

#### 19.3

In the event of Club fielding senior and reserve grade teams in any Finals match held at the same weekend, the provision of Rule 19 shall not apply, provided that no player other than those eligible for under 14.5, shall play in more than one game for the weekend.

#### 19.4

A player who has played more than ten (10) 1st 18 games for a club affiliated with a senior state league competition in that season will not be eligible to play finals within an AFL Victoria Country affiliated competition. To qualify for the finals for their respective Club, a player who has played either, Senior state league in the current season, must have played six (6) games in their relevant CDFNL Grade in the current season.

## 19.5

No Senior, Reserve, or Under 18 players shall play in more than one game in any weekend of the CDFNL finals series

Teams playing one or more Under 14.5 who have already played on that day or weekend in a final can only name 22 players on their team sheet for that match. NO Player shall play in more than two finals in any weekend.

# 19.6

A player who has played a senior grade game in that season must play at least 4 home and away games in under 18 to qualify for finals in that grade

# 19.7

Any player that plays ten (10) or more games in the NAB League competition, may, provided he has qualified under the rules, return to play with the League in the finals of the senior competitions only. (Existing Rule 19.3 does not apply for these players)

Any player that plays one (1) game in the NAB League competition, but less than ten (10) games must comply with rule 19.6.

#### 19.8

Where any player plays in two or more matches on a weekend in the home and Away series, the most senior grade game played only is counted towards qualification for the finals series. Reserves Grade is not deemed to be a higher grade than Under 18 for the purpose of this rule.

#### 20 Umpires

# 20.1

Central Umpires must make available to the home Club Secretary immediately after the match, the following:

- (a) Team sheets of opposing teams.
- (b) General report of match, starting time, uniforms, officials on Colac & District FNL form.
- (c) Selection of three best and fairest players in order of preference marking the names 1st, 2nd and 3rd choice using players' names shown in team lists and numbers of such players. This vote is to be placed in the separate sealed envelope.

(d) Charges against Clubs or players (with numbers) for breaches of rules and any matter they consider should be brought up.

### 20.2

Central Umpires must see that Club Goal and Boundary Umpires are properly uniformed. Goal Umpires must be appropriately attired and equipped in white coats, where provided, and equipped with suitable white flags, and two timekeepers are to be in position prior to commencement of the game.

#### 20.3

The Field Umpire shall have full control of the play and shall award penalties in accordance with the laws of the game. No appeal shall be entertained against any of his decisions.

## 20.4

Umpires officiating in all matches are to be escorted from the ground at half and full time, by both club representatives, to the door of the umpire's rooms.

The interchange steward is to perform this duty in the seniors, and runners to perform the duties in all other grades.

#### 20.5

In the event of an Official Umpire not being available, a substitute umpire shall be appointed by agreement of both Captains. Such Central Umpires shall have the power to:

- (a) issue yellow cards;
- (b) issue red cards;

#### 20.5.1

As an AFL National Umpire Accreditation Policy requirement; it is mandatory that all community umpires whether being "League" or "Club" must have an active (Introductory – Level 1) or actively engaged in AFL Umpire Accreditation. (Introductory – Level 1). This must be completed before the non-CDFUA umpire officiates in his 2nd match during any season.

#### 20.5.2

A player can be reported by a non-CDFUA appointed Umpire. Normal reporting procedures are to be followed. The CDFUA are to provide their advocate to support the non CDFUA appointed Umpire.

#### 20.6

Where a substitute Central Umpire has been appointed, he shall fill in the Best and Fairest votes.

#### 20.7

Where Goal Umpires are not provided by the CDFUA, they must be supplied by the competing Clubs. Any Club Goal Umpire officiating in a Colac & District FNL match must be at least 16 years of age. They must be conversant with the rules, wear white coats and be provided with white flags at least 45 cm square by Clubs and must use the League scorecard which must be signed by both Goal Umpires, Timekeepers and Central Umpires at the match conclusion, failing which it may not be recognised as official. They must keep their goal area clear of spectators. Club-appointed goal umpires must wear a white coat.

### 20.8 Boundary Umpires & Out Of Bounds Rule

# 20.8.1

In all Senior games normal AFL Laws of The Game will apply.

# 20.8.2

In all Reserve Grade and all other Underage games the following

"Last Possession" variation will apply.

A free kick shall be awarded against a player who:

- Kicks or Handballs the football over the Boundary Line without the football being touched by another Player;
- For the purposes of defining a kick, a kick shall be an intentional action, not accidental. When the
  ball comes off the foot or lower leg of a player without the intent of the player being to kick the ball,
  it will be deemed accidental contact and will not be determined as a kick by the umpire and therefore
  will result in a ball-up 15 metres in from the boundary.
- Where a Player who does not have possession stops the football being touched by an Opposition
  Player by Shepherding the ball across the Boundary Line where the ball could have otherwise been
  touched by the player being blocked, then the umpire will not award a free kick but will instead order
  a ball-up 15 metres in from the boundary.

Where Boundary Umpires are not provided by AFL Barwon in any Senior match, it is expected that the participating clubs will provide their own club boundary umpires. If these cannot be sourced and the ball goes over the boundary line, but not on the full; the Field umpires are instructed to throw the ball up 15 metres in from the boundary line.

# 20.8.1

Boundary umpires appointed by Clubs are to wear white shirts and shorts. Any infringement of this requirement will result in a fine.

Penalty \$10

# 20.9

Complaints of inefficiency from two different Clubs lodged in writing with the CEO during a season of appointment makes such complaints a matter to be dealt with by the League. Goal umpires are to record scores as registered and must check score cards with the other goal umpire at the end of each quarter. Goal umpires must wear a white coat. Any infringement with this requirement will result in a fine.

# 20.10

It shall be the duty of all Clubs to arrange for an Official to personally interview the Central Umpire at the door of his room immediately after the conclusion of any match in which his Club has taken part, and to ask such Umpire if it is intended to prefer any charge or charges. No other person is to enter the Umpires' room before, during or after a match.

# 21 Ground Encroachment

# 21.1

With the exception only of the quarter time and three-quarter time interval, no persons other than officials provided for in these Rules may encroach upon or enter the playing arena or stand sufficiently close to the boundary line to impede or hamper the progress or movement of the Boundary Umpires in the execution of their duties.

# 21.2

The officialing umpires are empowered to send off any of these officials if they are not correctly attired or are deemed to be exceeding their duties.

# 21.3

Team "huddles" at both quarter and three-quarter times (and extra time in finals) must be located outside the centre square.

# 22 Disputes

To be read in conjunction with AFL Vic Country Rules

# 22.1

The Board has the power to deal with and settle all disputes arising out of or in connection with this competition with the exception of appeals as defined in AFL Vic Country rules. The Board may have such disputes heard and decided by the Independent Tribunal. Should the party or parties concerned refuse or neglect to abide by such decision they shall be suspended from the competition for such time as the Board or Tribunal may determine and shall be liable to a fine in default of payment of such fine the party or parties concerned may be excluded from playing in the competition.

#### 22.2

Any party referring any dispute to the Board shall forward a statement of such dispute in writing to the Colac & District FNL Operations Manager not later than 5pm on the Monday following the match and 5pm on the Tuesday if Monday is a public holiday. This notice must be accompanied with a deposit for \$500.

# 23 Barrackers and Supporters

Any supporters or barrackers who are known to be members of any Club, within the League who, in the opinion of the Central, Boundary or Goal Umpire, Emergency Umpire, Board Member or Colac & District FNL Officer, behave in an offensive manner by spoken remarks, or openly incite players on the field to play in a manner not conducive to the best interests of the game, or are the cause of any disturbance between onlookers, will render the Club to which they belong liable to appear before the Board or Tribunal who will have the power after dealing with the case to impose a special fine, suspend or expel such Club from the League.

# 24 Practice Matches

## 24.1

In all practice matches played by an affiliated Club whether within the League or against a Club from another League the Club Secretary shall ensure that a team sheet is completed and handed to the Central Umpire.

# 24.2

Any player who plays in a practice match and is not a registered player of the participating Club must have his registered Club identified on the team sheet.

# 24.3

All practice matches will be conducted under AFL Vic Country rules and under normal match conditions. Umpires will have the right to report and order off. Umpires have been instructed that the Order Off Rule will not be used in lieu of reporting a player when a reportable offence has been committed.

# 24.4

All reports will be heard by the Independent Tribunal of the league of the host Club and any investigations referred from a practice match, will be conducted by the Host Club's League Investigation Officer.

# **NETBALL COMPETITION RULES**

# **Table of Contents**

1. THE LEAGUE	58
2. PLAYER ELIGIBILITY	58
3. DRESS CODE	60
4. HOME TEAMS	60
5. CONDUCT OF MATCHES	61
6. SCORING	62
7. UMPIRES	63
8. FINALS	63
9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION	64
10. RISK MANAGEMENT	64
11. INDEMNITY	65
12. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES	65

# COLAC & DISTRICT FOOTBALL NETBALL LEAGUE INC. NETBALL COMPETITION RULES

CDFNL shall follow the Official Netball Rules as set down by International Netball Federation, unless these have been superseded by Local By-Laws or Competition Regulations.

# 1. THE LEAGUE

1.1. This League shall affiliate with Netball Victoria.

1.2. The Executive reserve the right to waive and/or impose a fine if they deem it appropriate.

**1.3.** In the event of the League being in financial difficulties, the League may at a general meeting make a levy on all Clubs to meet the deficit.

**1.4.** In the event of the CFDNL arranging any workshops/courses/events each club is to provide a minimum of one (1) representatives to attend.

FINE: \$50 (plus costs, if deemed applicable)

1.5. The League shall consist of seven (7) grades:

- A Grade
- B Grade
- C Grade
- D Grade
- 17 & Under
- 15 & Under
- 13 & Under

1.6. Clubs must field an A Grade, B Grade and C Grade team before being permitted to field a D Grade team.

1.7. Under special circumstances prior to the start of the season a resolution can be made to allow a Club to vary 1.6. The Club must apply in writing to the AFL Barwon Netball Manager at least 21 days prior to the start of the season for the matter to be considered. The written application must include a list of the open age players that will be registered to play for the Club in the coming season.

# 2. PLAYER ELIGIBILITY

2.1. Participant age is determined as at 31st December of that year

NETBALL VICTORIA MEMBERSHIP

2.2. Netball Victoria membership fee is set annually by Netball Victoria.

VNA Prices for 2021 are as follows:

Senior: \$78 (incl. GST) 18 years and over. Born on or before 31/12/2003

Junior: \$58 (incl. GST) All Junior players Under 18 years of age

All Abilities: \$58 (incl. GST) Netballers with a disability – must show current annual Disability Service Pension Care or Health Care Card.

Off the Court: \$46 Committee members, volunteer's parents and others (Players, coaches and umpires must be a current senior, junior or AA member)

2.3. All players, coaches, assistant coaches and umpires participating in a CDFNL competition or program must be a current Netball Victoria member.

### **INELIGIBLE PLAYER/S**

2.4. An ineligible player/s is defined as

- A player/s who has not been cleared from an existing Club.
- A player/s who is not registered with the Club, currently playing for.
- A player/s who is not registered with Netball Victoria.
- · Whose name is not listed on the team sheet prior to the commencement of the match
- All or one of the above rules the player/s as ineligible.

# FINE: \$20.00 (per player)

Any winning team playing an ineligible player/s will lose the points for that match. The opposing team will receive the match points.

Any losing team playing an ineligible player will have their score deleted ie: "0" for that match.

If two opposing teams play ineligible player/s no points shall be allocated and it will be deemed a no match.

**2.5.** The name by which a player is registered with at the commencement of the season must be used on all score sheets and Association Best & Fairest cards throughout the season.

**2.6.** If a player marries prior to the commencement of the season and wishes her surname to be changed, the name change must be included on the club's registration sheet which then enables this change to be made on the data base. If a player marries during the season, her married name may be included in brackets, after her maiden name.

# SINGLE GAME VOUCHERS

2.7. Failure to clearly and completely fill in the Single Game Voucher Form and return this form, with the prescribed fee, with the score sheet for the match concerned will incur a fine. If this form and fee does not accompany the scoresheet the said player will be deemed an ineligible player.

# FEE: \$10 (per player)

2.8. No player is permitted to use more than three Single Game Vouchers in any given season.

#### PLAYER QUALIFICATION

**2.9.** Players must take the court in at least 16 quarters in a division throughout the home and away season to be eligible to participate in that division's finals series. If the minimum of 16 quarters is not played the player is ineligible to play finals.

NOTE: To be eligible under this rule a player MUST have PLAYED ON COURT during the games that player team sheets have been submitted throughout the home and away game series. Where teams play less than 80% of the maximum number of scheduled games, a pro rata system will apply.

**2.10.** Once an open age takes the court in the 17th quarter they are ineligible to play in a lower grade.

**2.11**. Once a player has taken the court in a specific senior grade they are ineligible to play in the senior grade 2 grades lower. Ie. A grade and C grade or B Grade and D Grade.

**2.12.** Any player may play more than one game a day but only if she is playing in a higher grade for each of the subsequent game/s.

**2.13.** Males who are 13 years of age (and older) are not permitted to participate in a female competition. To avoid any doubt:

2.13.1. males must be less than 13 years of age (actual age) as at the first day of the competition or season; and

2.13.2. males that turn 13 during that competition or season will be permitted to participate for the duration of that competition or season.

2.14. In 13 & under competitions, boys can participate on an unrestricted basis with respect to number of boys on court and positions played.

**2.15.** In 15 & under and 17 & under competitions, boys can participate but must be less than 13 years of age (actual age) as at the first day of the competition or season.

# 3. DRESS CODE

3.1. Team uniforms are to be the colours of the Football Club that the Netball Club is representing. Matching coloured skirts and pants or black pants must be worn, or netball dresses.

3.2. Socks form part of the uniform and must be worn.

3.3. Sports briefs / boy leg shorts must be worn and not be visible below the netball dress when a player is in a normal standing position.

3.4. No tracksuit pants or trousers are to be worn, unless for a health reason, medical condition or religious reasons a special request is made.

3.5. The colour of the club bibs is to be included on each team's uniform register.

**3.6.** All club players must wear uniforms as stated on the teams uniform register unless otherwise approved by the Executive.

Penalty for breaking any part of rule 3.1 through to 3.6: the offending player may not take the court until rectified.

**3.7.** Gloves are only permitted if a player has a medical condition, a medical certificate must be presented to the Association annually. Gloves should be cotton, with no rubber grip on fingers or palm.

# 4. HOME TEAMS

4.1. Provide changing facilities, balls, scoring facilities and an acceptable timing device and siren.

**4.2.** Be responsible for providing the score sheets and League Best & Fairest Cards. Ensure that League Best & Fairest cards and envelopes are clearly and completely filled in and signed by both umpires.

4.3. A vote card and envelope shall be accepted with only one signature.

4.4. To ensure that the Score Sheets and League Best & Fairest cards are delivered by 5:30pm to the football secretary

#### FINE: \$50.00

**4.5.** On match day, the Home Club is responsible for entering the results onto the MyNetball database by 4:30pm. And is to include the following:

- Quarter by quarter scores and final score
- Best Players (no team effort)
- Successful goals
- No. of Goal Attempts
- Quarters played for each player

Please note: It is the responsibility of the HOME club team to ensure all this information is correct before entering the data.

4.6. All results are to be entered no later than 4:30pm on match day.

# 5. CONDUCT OF MATCHES

5.1. Games to commence at the following times:

1 Court Venue (with D Grade)		1 Court Ver (without D		2 Court Venue		
Time	Competition	Time	Competition	Time	Competition	Competition
8:30am	13 & Under	9:00am	13 & Under	9:00am	13 & Under	
9:30am	15 & Under	10:00am	15 & Under	10:00am	15 & Under	
10:30am	17 & Under	11:00am	17 & Under	11:00am	17 & Under	
11:30am	D Grade	12:00pm	C Grade	12:00pm	C Grade	l i
12:30pm	C Grade	1:00pm	B Grade	1:00pm	B Grade	D Grade
1:30pm	B Grade	2:00pm	A Grade	2:00pm	A Grade	
2:30pm	A Grade					

5.2. If any club has two suitable courts available, both Underage and Open Age teams may play at the same time, if clubs, teams and umpires agree.

**5.3.** A grade play fifteen (15) minute quarters with a five (5) minute interval at half time, which can be reduced if coaches and umpires all agree and a three (3) minute interval between the 1st and 2nd quarters and the 3rd and 4th quarters.

5.4. Twelve (12) minute quarters are to be played in all grades other than A grade. There will be a three (3) minute interval at half time in all other grades and two (2) minute interval between 1st and 2nd, and 3rd and 4th quarters if so desired.

5.5. All matches, including finals will be played on outdoor courts, except where special permission is granted by the League.

5.6. Winning teams shall be allocated four points for a win and a percentage conducive to the score of the game. In the event of a drawn game each team shall be allocated two points.

5.7. Media recording is allowed if permission has been gained from both Clubs and both team coaches, prior to the commencement of the game.

**5.8.** Team officials shall, during an interval or stoppage for injury or illness, immediately notify, the scorers of any substitutions and/or team changes.

**5.9.** During an interval, team officials may appeal to the Umpires for extra time to deal with an emergency affecting a member of the team. If the appeal is granted the umpires shall advise each team's officials and the timekeeper of the expected length of the stoppage.

**5.10.** Team Officials and bench players may not move up and down the side lines or along the goal lines outside the court during play.

**5.11.** In signing the official scoresheet, the captain (from each club team) is agreeing that the score and the player's names listed for her team are correct.

# 6. SCORING

6.1. Both teams are required to provide a competent scorer/timekeeper

6.2. Home team to provide scorer and away team to provide timekeeper. It is the responsibility of both technical officials to ensure that score sheets are correctly and completely filled out and signed by their captains, umpires, scorers & time keeper. Failure to do so will result in a fine.

#### FINE: \$10.00

6.3. Scorers and timekeepers must be 15 years and older.

**6.4.** Teams may list up to twelve (12) players in alphabetical surname order for any one game. All names must be on the team sheet prior to the commencement of the match.

6.5. Names on the scoresheet must not be added or altered after the commencement of play. Any players who take the court without having been named on the scoresheet, must be removed immediately and cannot participate in the rest of the match. The scoresheet shall also indicate the positions played each quarter, the goals scored and the match score.

# Penalty 6.5: Offending player to be removed immediately from the court. For the period the player was on the court, the score for that team is removed – scorers to notate on scoresheet – plus \$100.00 fine to the offending club.

**6.6.** At the match conclusion, to indicate their satisfaction that the information on the official scoresheet is correct, it is to be signed by:

- · The captains of both competing teams
- Both the scorers

Umpires must sign the scoresheet to advise that they have officiated the game

# 7. UMPIRES

7.1. All umpires must have successfully completed the umpires Rules of Netball theory exam, online Foundation umpires course and a "Rules in Action" or League approved workshop/s, within the last four (4) years.

7.1.1. Those who have not completed the exam and attended a course/League approved workshop/ practical session in the last four years must complete both prior to umpiring with the League.

7.2. Each Club is to attempt to obtain a badged umpire to officiate at all A Grade games.

7.3. Umpires or players shall be allowed to finalise Best & Fairest cards and scoresheets prior to the following game.

7.4. Umpires to wear predominantly white or cream attire. White skirt or shorts or white tracksuit pants/ white leggings are to be worn.

7.5. No umpire shall umpire more than two (2) games, within our League, on any given day.

7.6. Any umpire that has umpired more than two games in any given grade cannot then be listed as a coach or assistant coach of that grade at a later date without written permission from the Executive Board.

FINE: \$50.00 (per game per coach / assistant coach)

# 8. FINALS

8.1. The League shall appoint one independent adult scorers, one score board operator and independent umpires for each finals match played.

- 8.2. Drawn matches in finals:
- There is a two (2) minute time interval to enable teams to change ends and scores to be verified on the Official Scoresheet.
- Positional changes and substitutions may be made during change over time, the beginning of Extra Time.
- 2 X 7 minute halves will be played in A Grade and 2 X 6 minute halves will be played in B, C, D, 17 & Under, 15 & Under, 13 & Under.
- At the end of the first half teams change ends, with an interval of one (1) minute at half time, positional changes and substitutions are allowed.
- Should there still be a draw at the end of the second half of Extra Time, play continues until one team has a two-goal advantage.
- In the event of an injury or illness during extra time, positional changes and/or substitutions may be made, normal injury or illness procedures shall apply

**8.3.** Any player who has qualified in a higher grade is eligible to be listed as one of the starting (7) seven players or a substitute but may only play (2) two finals matches on any given weekend.

**8.4.** If a tragedy involving 2 or more players from the same team occurs, lower grade player/s can be brought up to field the side, on the provision of Executive board approval.

**8.5.** Official Team Sheets and Team Bench forms must be completed 30 minutes prior to the scheduled commencement time of a finals match. Players must take the court in the nominated positions.

**8.6.** If qualified players are unable to take the court due to injury or illness, as determined by their coach, they may be listed on the official team sheet. They must be dressed in a team tracksuit and remain in the official bench area for the entire match.

8.7. All teams which miss games due to the opposition not having teams in that grade will be allocated four (4) points. Four (4) points will also be allocated for byes.

# 9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

**9.1.** AFL Barwon will impose the prescribed penalty or any other penalty to any member/team that fails to adhere to these Bylaws. AFL Barwon as the governing body have the authority to identify breaches and enforce the by-law penalties to ensure the integrity of the competition is maintained at all times.

A team wishing to protest a scoring issue must:

**9.1.1.** Not sign the Official scoresheet; but mark it with notice of intention to protest, then notify AFL Barwon Netball Manager of the protest.

**9.1.2.** Lodge the protest in writing with the AFL Barwon Netball Manager within 48 hours of the match being played / finished.

**9.1.3.** AFL Barwon will then discuss the issue with the relevant Club or Teams and make a decision regarding the matter. AFL Barwon shall inform the party/ies involved of their decision either verbally or in writing; or

9.1.4. Have an informal meeting with the relevant party/ies in order to discuss and resolve the dispute.

9.1.5. AFL Barwon's decision on all By law breaches is final and cannot be appealed.

Any member of a Club or Team who does not agree with a penalty imposed by AFL Barwon for breaches of Netball Victoria/Australia codes of conduct, policies & regulations, may appeal through the AFL Barwon Appeals Officer (Region General Manager) as per the process stipulated in the by-laws.

The appeal must be accompanied by a \$250 cheque of which:

9.1.6. \$150 will be returned to the Club if the appeal is upheld.

**9.1.7.** Up to \$150 will be returned to the Club if the appeal is dismissed. (At the discretion of the Appeals Board)

**9.1.8.** Up to \$150 will be returned to the Club if the appeal is not heard. (At the discretion of the Appeals Board)

# **10. RISK MANAGEMENT**

#### INJURY REPORTING

**10.1.** All Clubs are responsible for recording all injuries at the discretion of the injured player or players' guardian (player under 18) on the Injury Reporting Sheets available on the AFL Barwon website.

**10.2.** All representative coaches & team managers with an League representative team are responsible for recording all injuries at the discretion of the injured player or players' guardian (player under 18) on the Injury Reporting Sheets provided.

#### PRE-MATCH CHECKLIST

**10.3.** A pre-match checklist will be completed prior to all the start of matches, programs and training by the Clubs and by the League Executive for finals, and representative matches.

Any hazards identified will be:

10.3.1. Documented

10.3.2. Rectified if possible.

10.3.3. Reported to the appropriate agency (local council, reserve committee) if major repair is required. PREGNANCY

10.4. As per Netball Victoria Pregnancy in Netball

FIRST AID

10.5. Clubs shall be responsible for their own first aid through the home and away season and finals.

10.6. Clubs are to have ice available courtside.

10.7. The First Aid Kit will be accessible and all appropriate personnel.

#### EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

**10.8.** Clubs to ensure that Emergency phone numbers - Ambulance, Doctor, Physiotherapist, Health Clinic and Police and an Emergency Procedure Plan is to be displayed by the phone and in the First Aid Kit.

# 11. INDEMNITY

**11.1.** Except where provided or required by law and such cannot be excluded, the Colac and District Football Netball League and its respective directors, officers, members, servants or agents are absolved from all liability however arising from injury or damage, however caused, arising whilst participating as a member.

# 12. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

**12.1.** Where this By-law is silent, a decision can be made that ensures the integrity of the Colac and District Football Netball League is maintained at all times.

**12.2.** The Committee may in using its reasonable discretion, in exceptional or extenuating circumstances, alter, vary or waive the requirements set out in this By-law relating to the Colac and District Football Netball League.

**12.3.** Where a question arises as to the interpretation of these Rules or any Regulations/Bylaws of the League or any other matter where no provision is made in these Rules or such Regulations/Bylaws the Officers of the League shall have power to rule on such question arising.

ANY VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTION OR BYLAWS OF THE COLAC AND DISTRICT FOOTBALL NETBALL LEAGUE BY ANY CLUB OR PLAYER WILL NOT BE TOLERATED AND WILL BE DEALT WITH BY THE LEAGUE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT AS IT MAY DEEM NECESSARY.



# CDFNL 2021 FIXTURE

ROUND 1
Saturday 27th March
Alvie vs Irrewarra-Beeac (CEN)
Saturday 3rd April
Lorne vs Alvie (STR)
Saturday 10th April
Birregurra vs Simpson (BIR)
Western Eagles vs Colac Imperials (IRR)
Apollo Bay vs Otway Districts (ABR)
South Colac vs Irrewarra-Beeac (ELL)
ROUND 2
Saturday 17th April
Colac Imperials vs Birregurra (WES)
Otway Districts vs Simpson (GEL)
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Western Eagles (WAR)
Alvie vs Apollo Bay (ALR)
Lorne vs South Colac (STR)
ROUND 3
Saturday 24th April
Birregurra vs Otway Districts (BIR)
Colac Imperials vs Irrewarra-Beeac (WES)
Simpson vs Alvie (SIM)
Lorne vs Western Eagles (STR)
Apollo Bay vs South Colac (ABR)
ROUND 4
Saturday 1st May
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Birregurra (WAR)
Alvie vs Otway Districts (ALR)
Lorne vs Colac Imperials (STR)
South Colac vs Simpson (ELL)
Apollo Bay vs Western Eagles (ABR)

ROUND 5 (Love the Game Round)
Saturday 8th May
Birregurra vs Alvie (BIR)
Lorne vs Irrewarra-Beeac (STR)
Otway Districts vs South Colac (GEL)
Colac Imperials vs Apollo Bay (WES)
Simpson vs Western Eagles (SIM)
ROUND 6
Saturday 15th May
Lorne vs Birregurra (STR)
South Colac vs Alvie (ELL)
Apollo Bay vs Irrewarra-Beeac (ABR)
Western Eagles vs Otway Districts (IRR)
Simpson vs Colac Imperials (SIM)
ROUND 7
Saturday 22nd May
Birregurra vs South Colac (BIR)
Lorne vs Apollo Bay (STR)
Alvie vs Western Eagles (ALR)
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Simpson (WAR)
Otway Districts vs Colac Imperials (GEL)
ROUND 8
Saturday 29th May
Apollo Bay vs Birregurra (ABR)
Western Eagles vs South Colac (IRR)
Lorne vs Simpson (STR)
Colac Imperials vs Alvie (WES)
Otway Districts vs Irrewarra-Beeac (GEL)

ROUND 9	LEAG
Saturday 5th June	Satur
Birregurra vs Western Eagles (BIR)	ROUN
Apollo Bay vs Simpson (ABR)	Satur
South Colac vs Colac Imperials (ELL)	Birreg
Lorne vs Otway Districts (STR)	Otway
Bye: Alvie & Irrewarra-Beeac	Colac
ROUND 10	Simps
Saturday 12th June	Weste
Alvie vs Lorne (ALR)	ROUN
Simpson vs Birregurra (SIM)	Satur
Colac Imperials vs Western Eagles (WES)	Irrewa
Otway Districts vs Apollo Bay (GEL)	South
Irrewarra-Beeac vs South Colac (WAR)	Apollo
ROUND 11	Weste
Saturday 19th June	ROUN
Birregurra vs Colac Imperials (BIR)	Satur
Simpson vs Otway Districts (SIM)	Birreg
Western Eagles vs Irrewarra-Beeac (IRR)	Alvie
Apollo Bay vs Alvie (ABR)	Irrewa
South Colac vs Lorne (ELL)	Otway
ROUND 12	Colac
	ROUN
Saturday 26th June	Satur
Otway Districts vs Birregurra (GEL)	South
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Colac Imperials (WAR)	Apollo
Alvie vs Simpson (ALR)	Weste
Western Eagles vs Lorne (IRR)	Simps
South Colac vs Apollo Bay (ELL)	Colac

LEAGUE BYE
Saturday 3rd July
ROUND 13
Saturday 10th July
Birregurra vs Irrewarra-Beeac (BIR)
Otway Districts vs Alvie (GEL)
Colac Imperials vs Lorne (WES)
Simpson vs South Colac (SIM)
Western Eagles vs Apollo Bay (IRR)
ROUND 14
Saturday 17th July
Alvie vs Birregurra (ALR)
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Lorne (WAR)
South Colac vs Otway Districts (ELL)
Apollo Bay vs Colac Imperials (ABR)
Western Eagles vs Simpson (IRR)
ROUND 15
Saturday 24th July
Birregurra vs Lorne (BIR)
Alvie vs South Colac (ALR)
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Apollo Bay (WAR)
Otway Districts vs Western Eagles (GEL)
Colac Imperials vs Simpson (WES)
ROUND 16
Saturday 31st July
South Colac vs Birregurra (ELL)
Apollo Bay vs Lorne (ABR)
Western Eagles vs Alvie (IRR)
Simpson vs Irrewarra-Beeac (SIM)

66 2021 Handbook

ROUND 17	2021 CDFNL FINALS SERIES
Saturday 7th August	Saturday 21st August
Birregurra vs Apollo Bay (BIR)	Qualifying Finals (CEN)
South Colac vs Western Eagles (ELL)	Sunday 22nd August
Simpson vs Lorne (SIM)	Elimination Finals (CEN)
Alvie vs Colac Imperials (ALR)	Saturday 28th August
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Otway Districts (WAR)	
ROUND 18	Second Semi Finals (CEN)
Saturday 14th August	Sunday 29th August
Western Eagles vs Birregurra (IRR)	First Semi Finals (CEN)
Simpson vs Apollo Bay (SIM)	Saturday 4th September
Colac Imperials vs South Colac (WES)	Preliminary Finals (CEN)
Otway Districts vs Lorne (GEL)	Saturday 11th September
Irrewarra-Beeac vs Alvie (WAR)	Grand Finals (CEN)

# VENUES:

Alvie Recreation Reserve (ALR), Apollo Bay Recreation Reserve (ABR), Birregurra Recreation Reserve (BIR), Central Reserve (CEN), Elliminyt Recreation Reserve (LL), Gellibrand Recreation Reserve (GEL), Irrewillipe Recreation Reserve (IRR), Simpson Recreation Reserve (SIR), Stribling Reserve (STR), Warrowie Recreation Reserve (WAR), Western Oval (WES)